
Dr Gwynne Jones
Prif Weithredwr – Chief Executive

CYNGOR SIR YNYS MÔN
ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL
Swyddfeydd y Cyngor - Council Offices
LLANGEFNI
Ynys Môn - Anglesey
LL77 7TW

Ffôn / tel (01248) 752500
Ffacs / fax (01248) 750839

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD NOTICE OF MEETING

PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO A 
GORCHMYNION

PLANNING AND ORDERS 
COMMITTEE

DYDD MERCHER, 27 
GORFFENNAF 2016
  1.00 pm  

WEDNESDAY, 
27 JULY 2016

  1.00 pm  
SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, SWYDDFEYDD Y 

CYNGOR, LLANGEFNI
COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL 

OFFICES, LLANGEFNI

Swyddog Pwyllgor Ann Holmes 01248 752518 Committee Officer

AELODAU / MEMBERS

Cynghorwyr / Councillors:

Lewis Davies
Ann Griffith (Cadeirydd/Chair)
John Griffith
K P Hughes
W T Hughes
Vaughan Hughes
Victor Hughes
Richard Owain Jones (Is-Gadeirydd/Vice-Chair)
Raymond Jones
Jeffrey M.Evans
Nicola Roberts

Public Document Pack



Please note that meetings of the Committee are filmed for live and subsequent 
broadcast on the Council’s website. The Authority is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act and data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance 
with the Authority’s published policy

A g e n d a

Members are reminded that background papers referred to within committee reports 
are available for inspection in electronic format on the day of the meeting at the 
Council Chamber from 1.30 p.m. onwards; alternatively these may be inspected at 
the Development Management during normal office hours.  Documents referred to in 
reports may also be viewed in full on the electronic application files. 

Any additional information to hand following publication of reports will be verbally 
reported upon to the meeting.  

Before a decision notice is released conditions of approval or reasons for refusal 
given in written reports may be subject to minor amendments to account for 
typographical errors. 

Index

1 APOLOGIES  

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST  

To receive any declaration of interest by any Member or Officer in respect of any item 
of business.

3 MINUTES 6TH JULY, 2016 MEETING  (Pages 1 - 12)

To present the minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Orders 
Committee held on 6th July, 2016.

4 SITE VISITS 20TH JULY, 2016  (Pages 13 - 14)

To present the minutes of the Planning site visits held on 20th July, 2016.

5 PUBLIC SPEAKING  

6 APPLICATIONS THAT WILL BE DEFERRED  (Pages 15 - 18)

6.1  20C310B/EIA/RE – Rhyd y Groes, Rhosgoch

6.2  39C561/FR – The Lodge, Holyhead Road, Menai Bridge

7 APPLICATIONS ARISING  (Pages 19 - 64)

7.1  19C1174/FR – Enterprise Park, Holyhead

7.2   20C102L/EIA/RE – Rhyd y Groes Wind Farm, Rhosgoch

7.3   28C257A – Bryn Maelog, Llanfaelog



Please note that meetings of the Committee are filmed for live and subsequent 
broadcast on the Council’s website. The Authority is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act and data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance 
with the Authority’s published policy
8 ECONOMIC APPLICATIONS  

None to be considered by this meeting.

9 AFFORDABLE HOUSING APPLICATIONS  

None to be considered by this meeting.

10 DEPARTURE APPLICATIONS  

None to be considered by this meeting.

11 DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLORS AND 
OFFICERS  (Pages 65 - 70)

11.1  36C338A - Ysgol Henblas, Llangristiolus

12 REMAINDER OF APPLICATIONS  (Pages 71 - 92)

12.1 10C130 – Cable Bay Car Park, Aberffraw

12.2 10C131 – Broad Beach Car Park, Rhosneigr

12.3 18C224A – Fron Hendre, Llanfairynghornwy

12.4 25C255A – Tan Rallt, Carmel

12.5 19LPA1028/CC – 5//5a Stanley Crescent, Holyhead 

13 OTHER MATTERS  

None to be considered by this meeting.



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Planning and Orders Committee  
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 6 July 2016 
 
PRESENT:   
 

Councillor Ann Griffith (Chair) 
Councillor Richard Owain Jones (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors Lewis Davies, W T Hughes, Vaughan Hughes, Victor Hughes 
and Nicola Roberts 
 

IN ATTENDANCE: Planning Development Manager (DFJ), 
Planning Assistants, 
Highways Officer (JAR), 
Legal Services Manager (RJ), 
Committee Officer (MEH). 
 

APOLOGIES: Councillors John Griffith, K P Hughes and Raymond Jones. 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  Local Members : Councillors Jim Evans, R. Meirion Jones & Alun 
Mummery (application 7.3); Ieuan Williams (application 7.2); R.A. Dew 
(application 12.3). 

  

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
As noted above. 
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
 
Declarations of interest were made as follows :- 
 
Councillors Lewis Davies, Ann Griffith, Vaughan Hughes and Nicola Roberts declared a 
personal interest with regard to application 6.1 on the basis of the reference made to wind 
turbines in the Plaid Cymru Manifesto. 
 
Councillor W.T. Hughes declared a prejudicial interest with regard to application 6.1 and 
left the meeting during discussion and voting thereon. 
 
Councillor R.O. Jones declared a prejudicial interest with regard to application 6.1 and left 
the meeting during discussion and voting thereon.  Councillor Jones also declared a 
personal interest with regard to application 13.1. 
 
Councillor Lewis Davies declared a prejudicial interest with regard to application 12.5 and 
left the meeting during discussion and voting thereon. 
 
Councillor Ieuan Williams declared a personal interest with regard to application 7.2. 
 

3 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee held on 1 June, 2016 
were confirmed as correct. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 2 

4 SITE VISITS  
 
The minutes of the Planning Site Visits held on 15 June, 2016 were confirmed as correct. 
 

5 PUBLIC SPEAKING  
 
The Chair announced that there would be Public Speakers in relation to applications 7.2, 
8.1 and 12.1. 
 

6 APPLICATIONS THAT WILL BE DEFERRED  
 
6.1 20C102L/EIA/RE – Full application for the erection of 11 wind turbines 

comprising of 6, up to 900kW wind turbines with a maximum hub height of up to 
55m, rotor diameter of up to 52m, and a maximum upright vertical tip height of 
up to 79m, and 3, up to 900kW wind turbines with a maximum hub height of up to 
45m, rotor diameter of up to 52m, and a maximum upright vertical tip height of 
up to 70m, and 2, up to 900kW wind turbines with a maximum hub height of up to 
45m, rotor diameter of up to 52m, and a maximum upright vertical tip height of 
up to 66m above ground together with the creation of crane pads, foundations, 
underground electricity cables, improvements to parts of the existing track, 
works to the highway, the creation of new access tracks, an extension to the 
existing 33kV substation, the erection of a new 11kV substation, the erection of 
an anemometer and temporary construction and storage compounds and 
batching plant (which would also entail the de-commissioning of the existing 
wind farm) at Rhyd y Groes Wind Farm, Rhosgoch 
 
Having declared a prejudicial interest in this application, Councillors W.T. Hughes and 
Richard O. Jones withdrew from the meeting for the consideration and determination 
thereof. 
 
It was reported that the site visit scheduled for the 16 March, 2016 was deferred at the 
request of the applicant as discussions regarding the scheme were continuing with 
Natural Resources Wales with a view to agreeing possible measures aimed at 
mitigating impacts on the nearby Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  These 
discussions have taken place and an amended scheme has now been received. 

 
It was AGREED to visit the site as recommended by the Planning and Orders 
Committee held on 16 March, 2016. 

 
6.2  39C561/FR/TR – Full application for the erection of a Zorb Centre together with 

the construction of a vehicular access and car park on land at The Lodge, 
Holyhead Road, Menai Bridge 

 
It was RESOLVED to defer consideration of the application in accordance with 
the Officer’s recommendation for the reasons given in the written report. 

 

7 APPLICATIONS ARISING  
 
7.1  11C567A – Full application for the erection of two semi-detached dwellings 

together with the construction of a vehicular access on land adjacent to 24 
Awelfryn, Amlwch 

 

Page 2



 3 

The application is reported to the Planning and Orders Committee at the request of a 
Local Member.  At the meeting held on 1 June, 2016, the Committee resolved to 
undertake a site visit to the site.  The site was visited on the 15 June, 2016. 
 
The Planning Development Manager reported that the applicant has lodged an appeal 
against the failure to determine this application and therefore the Local Planning 
Authority is now precluded from issuing a decision.  Members are now confined as to 
whether they wish to challenge the appeal and if so on what grounds. 
 
Councillor W.T. Hughes, one of the Local Members stated that he did have concerns 
with parking issues on the Awelfryn Estate.  He accepted that planning permission for 
one dwelling exists on the site but he considered that two dwellings would equate to 
overdevelopment.  He referred to a public footpath near the site.  The Planning 
Development Manager responded that the proposed structure of the two semi-
detached dwellings will have the same carbon footprint as the one dwelling which has 
been previously approved.  He noted that it was evident that parking spaces on the 
Awelfryn Estate is not been used and parking facilities will be allocated on the site of 
this application which conforms to Highway regulations.   He further reported that 
discussions have taken place with the Public Rights of Way Officer with regard to the 
public footpath near the site.  The Officer has requested that a condition be attached to 
the approval of the application that the public footpath is not closed for public use. 
 
Councillor W.T. Hughes was of the opinion that overdevelopment will occur on the site 
and was also concerned regarding parking issues and especially regarding possible 
obstruction by parked cars when the emergency services have to attend an emergency 
on the Awelfryn Estate.  He proposed that these issues need to be raised at the appeal 
hearing.  There was no seconder to the proposal.  Councillor Hughes proposed that a 
recorded vote in respect of this application be minuted.  Councillor Nicola Roberts 
seconded the proposal for a recorded vote. 
 
The voting was as follows :- 
 
Not to contest the appeal on the basis of the Officer’s recommendation of 
approval :- 
 
Councillors Lewis Davies, T. Victor Hughes, Vaughan Hughes, Richard O. Jones, 
Nicola Roberts  - Total 5 
 
It was RESOLVED not to contest the appeal with regard to the Officer’s 
recommendation of approval. 
 

7.2  30C302M – Full application for demolition of the existing building together with 
the erection of a block of flats (35 flats) in its place at Plas Glanrafon Hotel, 
Benllech 

 
Councillor Ieuan Williams declared a personal interest with regard to this application.  
He stated that following legal advice he was able to speak as a Local Member in 
respect of this application but withdrew after deliberations and voting thereafter. 

 
The application is reported to the Planning and Orders Committee as it is a major 
application.  The Committee was also requested to deal with the application at the 
request of a Local Member.    At the meeting held on 1 June, 2016, the Committee 
resolved to undertake a site visit prior to determining the application.  The site was 
visited on the 15 June, 2016. 
 

Page 3



 4 

Mr. Euryn Morris, a Public Speaker addressed the Committee in opposition to the 
application and stated that he considered that the development at Plas Glanrafon Hotel 
is out of place and emphasised that Benllech is a village and not a town or city.  The 
village of Benllech is mainly a village of bungalows and not a village with four storey 
buildings.  He disagreed with the statement within the Officer’s report that there is a 
need for such a development in Benllech; there are a number of dwellings for sale in 
the village which are not selling.  These proposed flats are not Extra Care facilities for 
the elderly, they are flats on the open market; he was given to understand that people 
from outside the area have expressed interest in purchasing these flats.  If this 
development is approved it will have increased pressure on social care and social 
services on the Island.  Mr. Morris stated that traffic issues are the main concerns in 
respect of this development.  Tourism to the village of Benllech has been encouraged 
and having increased traffic from these 35 flats will cause increased traffic problems in 
the village. Six junctions will be fifty yards from the access to this development 
together with two bus stops.  The largest carpark in Benllech has been taken for the 
development of the new doctor’s surgery which has increased the pressure on parking 
spaces in the village.  This development at Plas Glanrafon Hotel does not afford 
parking spaces for all the 35 flats.   He further stated that Plas Glanrafon Hotel has 
experienced flooding over the years and this development is at a lower level; he was 
unsure how the developer would resolve the flooding issues. 
 
Mr. Chris Butt, a Public Speaker addressed the Committee as a supporter of the 
application.  He stated that the developer considers that this site is an excellent 
location for such a development for older person's accommodation.  The site is near 
local shops and amenity services for the residents to use. The developer has identified 
a local need for such a development on Anglesey.  The development has been 
identified as a Category 2 accommodation which will be marked as retirement living 
facility.  The facility will have a managed form of accommodation with a range of 
facilities available with a 24 hours careline.  The developer considers that the facility 
will release family homes in the area when older people decide to move into such a 
facility.  During a consultation process by the developer there was considerable 
support within the local area for such a development. 
 
Councillor Ieuan Williams, a Local Member said that the developer has conducted two 
public consultations within the village of Benllech together with a consultation process 
with the Community Council.  He stated that neighbouring properties have expressed 
their objection to the proposed development as noted within the Officer’s report to the 
Committee.  He further stated that some constituents have expressed orally their 
support for the development as they are concerned with the disrepair of the Plas 
Glanrafon Hotel building at present.  The main support for the development seems to 
be that Benllech is a tourist area and local business do benefit from visitors to the area.  
Councillor Ieuan Williams left the meeting thereafter. 
 
Councillor Vaughan Hughes, as a Local Member said that as he is a Member of the 
Planning and Orders Committee he has been referring supporters and objectors to the 
application to the other two Local Members following legal advice by the Legal 
Department.   He stated that large hotels similar to the Plas Glanrafon Hotel have 
outgrown their use and attractiveness for tourist.  Councillor Hughes said that the 
issues relating the traffic and flooding issues raised by the objectors needs to be 
addressed by Officers. 
 
The Planning Development Manager said that the proposed development is for 35 flats 
and not 36 as noted in the report.  He stated that 4 additional letters of support has 
been received since the publishing of the Agenda for the Committee.  The total of 52 
letters has been received in support of the application and 5 letters of objection.  Due 

Page 4



 5 

to the number of units proposed there is a requirement that an element of affordable 
housing or a financial contribution to the Housing fund is made.  It has been accepted 
that a financial contribution of £150,000 should be secured through a legal agreement.  
Amenity issues have been address and this part of Benllech exhibits a wide range of 
styles and designs and that there is sufficient distance between the development and 
neighbouring dwellings to make sure that it does not affect privacy and overlooking 
issues.  The Officer said that it has been accepted that part of the site is within flood 
zone; a Flood Consequence Assessment has been submitted as part of the application 
and has been assessed by Natural Resources Wales and they are in agreement that 
the developing of this site would not cause flooding in the area.  The Highways 
Authority has raised no objection to the development.   
 
Members of the Committee questioned if there was adequate parking on the site for 
such a large development.  The Highways Officer responded that due to the size of the 
previous Plas Glanrafon Hotel it was considered that adequate parking facilities are 
available on the site and that the access as sufficient. 
 
Councillor Nicola Roberts said that no reference is made within the report to 
consultation with the Social Services with regard to this proposed application.  The 
Planning Development Officer responded that informal discussions have taken place 
with the appropriate department within the Council. 
 
Councillor T.V. Hughes proposed that the application be approved and Councillor 
Nicola Roberts seconded the proposal. 

 
It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation subject to the conditions listed within the written report. 
 

7.3  31C170D – Full application for the erection of 17 dwellings (12 with 2 bedrooms, 
4 with 3 bedrooms and 1 bungalow with 3 bedrooms) together with the 
construction of a new vehicular and pedestrian access on land adjacent to Hen 
Lon Dyfnia, Llanfairpwll 

 
The application is reported to the Planning and Orders Committee as the application 
site is located outside, albeit adjoining the Local Plan development boundary for 
Llanfairpwll and the application has been advertised as a departure from the Local 
Plan.  Two of the Local Members have also requested that the application be 
determined by the Committee.  At its meeting held on 11 May, 2016 the Committee 
resolved to visit the site ahead of determining the application and the site visit took 
place on 18 May, 2016.   
 
The Planning Development Manager said that the applicant has appealed against non-
determination of the application by the Authority and a public inquiry procedure has 
now commenced.  The Committee at its meeting held on 1 June, 2016 resolved to 
refuse the application contrary to the recommendation of the Officer’s.  The reasons 
given for refusal were overdevelopment, drainage and risk of flooding. 
 
The Committee was asked to confirm if they wished to defend all three reasons at 
appeal. 
 
Councillor Lewis Davies proposed that the three reasons for refusal of the application 
be defended at appeal and Councillor T.V. Hughes seconded the proposal. 
 
It was RESOLVED to contest the appeal for refusal of the application contrary to 
the Officer’s recommendation. 

Page 5



 6 

8 ECONOMIC APPLICATIONS  
 
8.1  24C300A/ECON – Formation of lakes for fishing and recreation use, erection of 

an ancillary shop/café and a storage building together with associated access 
roads and parking areas and the installation of a new septic tank on land 
forming part of Tyn Rhos Fawr, Dulas 

 
The application is reported to the Planning and Orders Committee due to the context 
and scale of the application.  It was noted that the site was visited in July 2015. 
 
Mr. James Dodd addressed the Committee as a supporter of the application.  Mr. 
Dodd gave a background of the experience of the Company he represents to the 
Committee.  The application is for a series of amenity lakes to enhance the tourism of 
the Island with sailing, fishing, canoeing, café, boat storage and teaching facility.  The 
proposed development comprises of 6 lakes.  In lakes 1, 2 and 3 the water is stored 
below natural ground level and each lake has a volume of less than 10,000 cubic 
metres.  Lake 4 and 5 also has capacity of less than 10,000 cubic metres but they are 
located within the earthworks for retaining structures of Lake 6.  Lake 6 is the 
impoundment lakes with a volume of over 100,000 cubic metres.  The construction of 
lakes and reservoirs in Wales is controlled by the Reservoirs Act 1975.  This Act was 
amended in Wales on 1 April, 2016 and now all reservoirs with a raised structure and 
is capable of holding more than 10,000 cubic metres, which is above the natural level, 
on any part of the surrounding land fall under these regulations.  The regulations are 
operated, monitored and policed by Natural Resources Wales.  The highest safety 
standards is paramount in the design of the Lakes and annual inspections must be 
undertaken by a Panel Engineer and reports submitted to Natural Resources Wales.   
 
The Committee asked questions of Mr. Dodd regarding historical flooding of the A5025 
near the site.  Mr. Dodd responded that following consultation with the Highways 
Officers the matter has been alleviated by the construction of a culvert at the low point 
of the highway.  The construction of the lakes will slow the water flow into the river and 
alleviate flooding problems on the A5025.  Members further raised questions regarding 
the retaining of Welsh names on the proposed lakes.  Mr. Dodd agreed that the Welsh 
names need to be protected.  The Planning Development Manager stated that a Welsh 
Language Impact Assessment had been accepted by the Council’s Welsh Language 
Impact Officer.  
 
The Planning Development Manager informed the Committee that since the report was 
written a screening opinion has been made by the Council which confirms that full 
environmental assessment is not required with the application.  He further stated that 
an additional planning condition will need to be imposed on any approval of the 
application with regard to the opening hours of the facility i.e. 8 a.m., to 8.00 p.m.  The 
Officer reported that substantial landscaping works around the site and a new access 
will be constructed into the highway.  The development of the site will take up to 3 
years to complete.  The Committee report confirmed that the principle of the 
development is acceptable in this countryside location.  The impacts of the 
construction and operation of the development on the residential amenities of adjacent 
properties have been assessed.   A visualisation plan was shown to the Committee as 
had been requested at the site visit to the site.  He noted that the recommendation of 
the Officer’s was of approval. 
 
Councillor T.V. Hughes said that he welcomed that such a developer wished to 
develop the site and to attract tourist and local residents to make use of such a facility.  
Councillor T.V. Hughes proposed that the application be approved and Councillor 
Vaughan Hughes seconded the proposal.   

Page 6



 7 

Councillor W.T. Hughes proposed that the application be refused as he wished to keep 
the character of the area.  He also raised concerns regarding the impact on the Welsh 
language and the need to safeguard the historical Welsh names in the Dulas area.  
There was no seconder to the proposal. 
 
Councillor Lewis Davies abstained from voting. 
 
It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation subject to the conditions listed within the written report. 

 
8.2  34C326D/VAR/ECON – Application under Section 73 for the variation of 

condition (01) from planning permission reference 34C326C/ECON (erection of a 
resource centre) so as to allow a further 5 years to commence work at Former 
Cross Keys Site, Bulkeley Square, Llangefni 

 
The application is presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as part of the site 
is within Council ownership. 
 
Councillor T.V. Hughes proposed that the application be approved and Councillor W.T. 
Hughes seconded the proposal. 
 
It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation subject to the conditions listed within the written report. 

 

9 AFFORDABLE HOUSING APPLICATIONS  
 
None were considered by this meeting. 
 

10 DEPARTURE APPLICATIONS  
 
None were considered by this meeting. 
 

11 DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLORS AND OFFICERS  
 
11.1  34C313A – Full application for alterations and extensions at Croeso, 

Rhosmeirch 
 

The application is reported to the Planning and Orders Committee as the applicant is 
a relevant Officer under paragraph 4.6.10.2 of the Constitution.  The application has 
been scrutinised by the Monitoring Officer as required under paragraph 4.6.10.3 of 
the Constitution. 
 
Councillor Lewis Davies proposed that the application be approved and Councillor 
Nicola Roberts seconded the proposal. 
 
It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation, subject to the conditions listed in the written report. 

 

12 REMAINDER OF APPLICATIONS  
 
12.1  15C218 – Full application for change of use of the public house into two 

residential units at Royal Oak, Malltraeth 
 

Page 7



 8 

The application is reported to the Planning and Orders Committee at the request of a 
Local Member. 
 
Councillor Ann Griffith, stood down as Chair of the Committee to speak in her 
capacity as a Local Member regarding the application.  Councillor R.O. Jones, Vice-
Chair took the Chair for the discussion and determination of the application. 
 
Mr. David Vaughan, public speaker said that he was speaking on behalf of most of 
the residents of the village of Malltraeth in objection to this application.  Mr. Vaughan 
said that the Royal Oak did not close due to economic issues and it did not make 
sense for the removal of a viable premises which is a loss of a vital community asset.  
The Royal Oak has been in existence for many years with a consent for the building 
to be used as a public house.  There has always been a need for such a facility and 
that need still exists due to vital amenity for local and tourist to the Malltraeth area.  
The Royal Oak is also on the coastal path route which is been used by birdwatchers 
and walkers.  Tourists have all been able to take advantage of the facility at the Royal 
Oak over the years as a village pub. 
 
The Committee asked questions of Mr. Vaughan with regard as to why nobody in the 
village had an interest in running the public house in Malltraeth.  It was further stated 
that there is another public house in the village.  Mr. Vaughan responded that there 
was interest locally in running the Royal Oak but they were outbid in the auction of 
the facility.  He further stated that there was a rumour that the other public house in 
the village was closing aswell. 
 
Mr. Dafydd Jones, a Public Speaker spoke in favour of the proposal and stated that 
the applicant bought the facility at auction in December 2015 following the closure of 
the Royal Oak in August 2014 due to the lack of business at the premises.  Policy 55 
of the Ynys Môn Local Plan enables the converting of such facilities into residential 
dwellings providing that policies are met. The proposal will include the demolition of  
flat roof extensions and will be replaced with slate roof smaller extension.  He further 
stated that the change of use of the public house into residential dwellings will have a 
positive impact on the neighbouring properties with the reduction of noise 
disturbance, improving parking facilities for local residents and make use of an empty 
building since 2014.  Mr. Jones further stated that another public house exists in the 
village of Malltraeth.   
 
The Committee asked questions of Mr. Jones with regard to the statement made by 
the objectors that there was no business reasons why the Royal Oak ceased to 
remain open.  Mr. Jones said that the owner was made bankrupt due to the lack of 
business at the Royal Oak and that is why the premises was put to auction.  
 
Councillor Ann Griffith, a Local Member said that she was speaking on behalf of 
some residents of the village of Malltraeth and also on behalf of the Bodorgan 
Community Council.  She stated that she had requested that the Planning and Orders 
Committee determine this application due to the volume of objections to the proposal.  
Councillor Griffith referred to the two main concerns of the residents of the village 
with regard to the loss of a popular village public house which is a local community 
hub for the area.  The residents are concerned for the future of the other public 
house; there a rumours that the Joiners Arms in the village is to close shortly.  
Concerns have been also been expressed that the inside of the Royal Oak has been 
cleared of fixtures and fittings without permission.  Due to the concerns of the local 
residents a petition of near 200 names was collected with regard to the importance of 
the Royal Oak as a public house; Malltraeth is an area for sporting activities and the 

Page 8



 9 

pub was a facility for the competitors attending the Anglesey Racing Track near 
Aberffraw together with birdwatchers and artists who visit the area.  
 
Councillor Griffith stated that the concerns of the Community Council is that the 
proposed dwellings should be affordable housing for local residents and not for 
holiday accommodation.    She noted that following discussions with the relevant 
department of the Council, 45 dwellings in the Malltraeth area are currently empty, 
however the statistics do not specify if these houses are empty or holiday homes.  20 
people are currently on the social housing list and one person has registered on the 
affordable housing list for a dwelling in Malltraeth.  The 2011 census has shown that 
there are 90 holiday homes out of 807 dwellings in the Malltraeth area. House prices 
in 2014 recorded an average of £171,000 and the average household income is 
£24,568.  The affordability of houses ratio is 6.9 times more than the average income 
in 2014 in the Malltraeth area. 
 
The Planning Development Manager reported that the building is located within the 
confines of the village and the design of the proposed extension is considered 
acceptable.  He appreciated that the Royal Oak public house was a community 
resource but he does understand that there is another public house in the village of 
Malltraeth and that it is only a rumour that it is to close in the future.  As regards to 
the matter of internal works carried out, investigations confirmed that no planning 
permission had been required.   
 
Councillor Vaughan Hughes proposed that the application be approved and 
Councillor Nicola Roberts seconded the proposal. 

 
It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation subject to the conditions listed in the written report. 
 

12.2  19C1174/FR – Full application for change of use of land to place 103 containers 
for storage purposes at Enterprise Park, Holyhead 
 
The application is reported to the Planning and Orders Committee as the land that 
forms the application site is owned by the Local Authority. 
 
The Chair reported that one of the Local Members has requested that the site be 
visited due to possible flooding and traffic issues. 
 
Councillor Lewis Davies proposed that the site be visited and Councillor Nicola 
Roberts seconded the proposal. 
 
It was RESOLVED that a site visit be undertaken in accordance with the request 
of a Local Member for the reason given. 
 

12.3  28C257A – Outline application for the erection of a dwelling together with full 
details of the vehicular access on land adjacent to Bryn Maelog, Llanfaelog 
 
The application is reported to the Planning and Orders Committee at the request of a 
Local Member. 
 
The Planning Development Manager reported that the application site is currently 
occupied as a builder’s yard and has an existing road access and some buildings and 
hardstandings.  The Officer’s accepted that there are dwellings in the vicinity of this 
application but it is not considered that the site forms an infill site as there is a distinct 
cap between this site and the village of Llanfaelog and is not a reasonable extension 

Page 9



 10 

to the existing developed part of the settlement.  The development of a dwelling on 
this site would lead to pressure to develop the remaining part of the site to the east of 
the plot as well as to infill development back towards the St. Maelog Church. 
 
Councillor R.A. Dew, a Local Member stated that this application is for a dwelling on 
a brownfield site on the outskirts of the village of Llanfaelog which is currently being 
used as a builder’s yard.  This proposed dwelling would be for the owner of the 
builder’s yard to retire and would not be sold on the open market.  Councillor Dew 
referred to the reference within the report with regard to the development of 
brownfield sites and gives priority to land that has been developed previously.  He 
considered that a dwelling on this site would enhance the area and that it does 
conforms with Policy 50 as an infill site.   
 
Councillor Lewis Davies proposed that the application be approved contrary to the 
Officer’s recommendation as he considered that a dwelling on this site would improve 
the area.  Councillor T.V. Hughes seconded the proposal.  The reasons given for 
approval were that the proposed dwelling does conform with Policy 50, it is an infill 
site as the site has been previously developed and that it does not harm the 
amenities of the area. 

 
It was RESOLVED to approve the application contrary to the Officer’s 
recommendation for the reasons given. 
 
(In accordance with the requirements of the Council’s Constitution, the 
application was automatically deferred to the next meeting to allow Officers the 
opportunity to prepare a report in respect of the reasons given for approving 
the application). 
 

12.4  39LPA1026/TPO/CC – Application for works to fell trees which are protected by 
a Tree Preservation Order at Old Reservoir, Pentraeth Road, Menai Bridge 

 
The application is presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as the 
application is on Council owned land. 
 
Councillor Lewis Davies proposed that the application be approved and Councillor 
Vaughan Hughes seconded the proposal. 

 
It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation subject to the conditions listed in the written report. 
 

12.5  41C8G/DEL – Application under Section 73 for the removal of condition (10) 
(details of a passing bay) from planning permission reference 41C8C (full 
application for the change of use of land for the siting of 33 touring caravans) 
and the creation of a one-way access system in lieu at Garnedd Ddu, Star 

 
Having declared a prejudicial interest in this application, Councillor Lewis Davies 
withdrew from the meeting for the consideration and determination thereof. 
 
The application is presented to the Planning and Orders Committee as the 
application is made for the deletion of condition 10 of planning permission 41C8C (full 
application for the change of use of land for the siting of 33 touring caravans).  It was 
reported that Condition 10 required the creation of a passing bay on the approach 
road to the site.  In lieu of providing a passing bay, a one way access system at the 
site entrance is proposed with a new access onto the public highway. 
 

Page 10



 11 

Councillor Jim Evans, a Local Member read out correspondence he received by Dr. 
Edwards, Castellfryn, Gaerwen to the Committee.  The correspondence challenged 
the amendment of Condition 10. 
 
Councillor R. Meirion Jones, a Local Member emphasised that the applicants were 
advised by Officers that a passing bay was required when they first submitted their 
planning application reference 41C8C.  However, he appreciated the objections with 
regard to the removal of condition (10) but stated that a one-way system is an 
amendment to the condition regarding a passing bay.  Only one condition of all those 
previously imposed on planning application 41C8C has been requested to be 
removed.  Councillor Jones said that the Highways Authority is willing to accept the 
removal of condition 10 but that a one-way system must be undertaken at the site.   
 
The Planning Development Manager informed the Committee that since the report 
was written 8 letters and a petition of 19 names of objections and has been received 
with regard to this application.  Despite suggested conditions by the Highways 
Authority, the Planning and Orders Committee took a view that an additional 
condition requiring the formation of a passing bay was required to deal with traffic 
arising from the proposed development.  Discussions have taken place with the 
applicants and Officers from the Highways Authority with regard to a traffic 
management plan which was agreed and a one-way system is proposed. 
 
The Highways Officer said that there were concerns with regard to a narrow access 
to the site; traffic would have to enter and depart the site from this access and that is 
why a passing bay was previously suggested with regard to this application.  The 
road to this site is a public highway and it was considered that a one-way system was 
a safer option. 
 
Councillor T.V. Hughes proposed that the application be approved and Councillor 
Nicola Roberts seconded the proposal. 

 
It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer’s 
recommendation subject to the conditions listed in the written report. 

 

13 OTHER MATTERS  
 
13.1  11LPA101M/1/LB/CC – Listed Building Consent for works at Ysgol Syr Thomas 

Jones, Amlwch 
 

The Committee was advised that the application will be forwarded to the Welsh 
Assembly of Wales for determination in accordance with Regulation 13 of Planning 
(Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

 
It was RESOLVED to note the information. 

 
 
  

 COUNCILLOR ANN GRIFFITH 
 CHAIR 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING SITE VISITS 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 20 July, 2016 

PRESENT: Councillors Lewis Davies, Jeff Evans, John Griffith,  
Kenneth Hughes, Vaughan Hughes, Victor Hughes, 
Richard Owain Jones (for application 1 only)  

IN ATTENDANCE: Planning Officer (CR) 
Senior Landscape and Tree Officer (EH) 

APOLOGIES: 

 

ALSO PRESENT: 

Councillor Ann Griffith 
 
 
Local Member: Councillor Trefor Lloyd Hughes (for application 1) 

 

 

1. 19C1174/FR – Full application for change of use of land to place 103 containers for storage 
purposes at Enterprise Park, Holyhead 

The Members viewed the site of the proposed containers and were advised of the extent of tree 
removal as part of the application. The Members viewed the access to the site and surrounding 
footways. 
 
 
2.    20C102L/EIA/RE – Full application for the erection of 11 wind turbines comprising of 6 up 

to 900kW wind turbines with a maximum hub height of up to 55m, rotor diameter of up to 
52m, and a maximum upright vertical tip height of up to 79m, and 3, up to 900kW wind 
turbines with a maximum hub height of up to 45m, rotor diameter of up to 52m, and a 
maximum upright vertical tip height of up to 70m, and 2, up to 900kW wind turbines with a 
maximum hub height of up to 45m, rotor diameter of up to 52m, and a maximum upright 
vertical tip height of up to 66m above ground together with the creation of crane pads, 
foundations, underground electricity cables, improvements to parts of the existing track, 
works to the highway, the creation of new access tracks, an extension to the existing 
33kV substation, the erection of a new 11kV substation, the erection of an anemometer 
and temporary construction and storage compounds and batching plant (which would 
also entail the de-commissioning of the existing wind farm) at Rhyd y Groes Wind Farm, 
Rhosgoch 

 
The Members visited the site and details of the scheme were confirmed. They visited the surrounding 
area taking into account 5 of the viewpoints submitted as part of the Landscape and Visual 
Assessment. 
 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



6.1  Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                     Remainder Applications 
   

Rhif y Cais:     20C310B/EIA/RE     Application Number 
 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 
 

Countryside Renewables (North Anglesey) Ltd 
 

Cais llawn ar gyfer adeiladu fferm arae solar 49.99MWp ynghyd ag offer a isadeiledd 
cysylltiedig a gwaith ategol ar dir ger / Full application for the construction of a 49.99MW solar 

array farm together with associated equipment, infrastructure and ancillary works on land 
adjacent to  

   
Rhyd y Groes, Rhosgoch 

   
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 
Planning Committee: 27/07/2016 
 
Report of Head of Regulation and Economic  Development Service (MTD) 
 
 Recommendation:   
 
Site Visit 
 
Due to the nature and scale of the application it is considered that in order to fully assess the impact 
of the proposed development a site visit would be beneficial prior to consideration of the application. 
 
 

 
 

Page 16



6.2  Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                     Remainder Applications 
   

Rhif y Cais:     39C561/FR/TR     Application Number 
 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 
 

Mr George Ulrich 
 

Cais llawn ar gyfer codi Canolfan Zorb ynghyd a chreu mynedfa i gerbydau a maes parcio ar 
dir yn / Full application for the erection of a Zorb Centre together with the construction of a 

vehicular access and car park on land at  
   

The Lodge, Ffordd Caergybi / Holyhead Road, Porthaethwy / Menai Bridge 
   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 
Planning Committee: 27/07/2016 
 
 Report of Head of Planning Service (GJ) 
 
 Recommendation:   
 
Defer 
 
The applicant has requested that the application is defered due to ongoing negotiation with the Welsh 
Assembly Government regarding highway issues.   
 
The proposal constitutes a departure from a standard application and was due to be heard by an 
independent panel of the Welsh Assembly Government in Cardiff on the 12th July, 2016.  The 
application was not presented to the committee as the Welsh Assembly Government requested the 
departure application be revised.  The next independent meeting will be held on the 9th August where 
it is hoped that the application will be discussed. 
 
It is considered suitable to defer the application as the outcome of discussions may influence the 
recommendation of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 
 

Page 18



7.1  Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications   
   

Rhif y Cais:     19C1174/FR     Application Number 
 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 
 

Lockstock Self Storage Ltd 
 

Cais llawn i newid defnydd tir i osod 103 cynhwysydd ar gyfer pwrpas storio yn / Full 
application for change of use of land to place 103 containers for storage purposes at 

   
Enterprise Park, Caergybi/Holyhead 

   
 
 

 
 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 
Planning Committee: 27/07/2016 
 
Report of Head of Regulation and Economic  Development Service (SCR) 
 
 Recommendation:   
 
Permit 
 
 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  
 
The land that forms the application site is owned by the Local Authority. 
 
At its meeting held on 6th July, 2016 the Members resolved to undertake a site visit prior to 
determining the application.  The site was visited on 20th July and the members will be familiar with 
the site and its setting. 
 
 1. Proposal and Site  
 
The application is for the change of use of the land for the siting of 103 storage containers. 
 
The site lies on land between Holyhead Fire Station, Veterinary Surgery and Builders Merchant and 
St Mary’s Roman Catholic Cemetery.  Part of the site lies within the flood zone (C2). 
 
 2. Key Issue(s)  
 
The applications main issues are whether the proposal complies with current policies, whether the 
proposal complies with the requirement of Technical Advice Note 15 in regards to flooding and 
whether the proposal will have a detrimental impact on the amenities of the surrounding properties 
and surrounding area. 
 
 3. Main Policies  
 
Ynys Môn Local Plan 
Policy 1 – General Policy 
Policy 2 – New Jobs 
Policy 28 - Flooding 
Policy 42 – Design 
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 
Policy B1 – Employment 
Policy B2 - Employment 
Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 
Policy D29 – Design 
 
Stopped Unitary Development Plan 
Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance  
Policy GP2 – Design 
Policy EP3 – Local Action Area 
Policy EP4 – Other Employment Opportunities and Rural Diversification 
Policy SG2 – Development and Flooding 
 

Page 20



Planning Policy Wales, 2016, 8th Edition 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance – Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment 
 
Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 
 
Technical Advice Note 15 - Development and Flood Risk 
 
 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  
 
Town Council – No objection 
 
Local Member, Cllr T Ll Hughes – Call-in due to traffic and location – however the call-in was 
received after the end of the consultation date 
 
 
Local Member, Cllr J Evans – No response to date 
 
Local Member, Cllr D Rh Thomas – No response to date 
 
Highway Authority – Objected to the original scheme which included the erection of a gate which 
would restrict access to the Enterprise Centre.  This has now been removed from the scheme and at 
the time of writing this report we are awaiting the formal response of the Highway Authority 
 
Drainage Section – Drainage details acceptable 
 
Welsh Water – Recommend conditional approval.  
 
North Wales Police – No response to date 
 
Natural Resource Wales – Recommend conditional approval  
 
Environmental Health – Comments in regards to hours of operation  
 
The proposal was advertised through the posting of a notice on site, publication of a notice in the local 
press together with the distribution of personal letters of notification to the occupiers of neighbouring 
properties.  Following the receipt of an amended scheme the publicity process was repeated.  The 
latest date for the receipt of representations was the 6th April, 2016 and at the time of writing this 
report two letters of objection  had been received at the department,  
 
The main issue raised can be summarised as follows: 
 
i) Concern that the blocking of the highway with the proposed gate would affect access to the 
neighbouring building (Digartref) 
 
ii) Noise disturbance if the site is to be open 24 hours 
 
iii) Drainage issues by way of flooding 
 
iv) Concerns in regards to the type of materials that are to be stored in the containers  
 
 

Page 21



v) Highway Safety  
 
In response to these comments I would state: 
 
i) The scheme has been amended and access to the adjoining building will not be restricted 
 
ii) Due to the proximity of the site to the adjoining properties it is considered reasonable to include a 
condition to restrict the hours of operation at the site 
 
iii) The Drainage Section of the Authority, Welsh Water and Natural Resource Wales have been 
consulted and requested amendments and additional information in support of the application and 
have confirmed that the scheme as now considered is acceptable and will not have a detrimental 
impact on the drainage system 
 
iv) The site operator will have to operate in accordance with current guidance in regards to storage of 
chemicals (if applicable) within the site. 
 
v) As the scheme has been reduced the access track which runs along the rear of the fire station to 
the Enterprise Centre will not be obstructed.  
 
 5. Relevant Planning History  
 
None 
 
 6. Main Planning Considerations  
 
Policy – The site lies within the development boundary of Holyhead and is in close proximity of 
commercial businesses.  The site has been allocated for employment purposes within the Ynys Mon 
Local Plan.  The proposal will create employment opportunities and therefore complies with Policy 2 
of the Ynys Mon Local Plan.   
 
Policy EP3 of the stopped Unitary Development states that a Local Action Area is designated for 
Holyhead within which new development, redevelopment, rehabilitation and improvement which 
improves the town and port of Holyhead will be permitted. 
 
TAN 15 – Development and Flood Risk 
 
Part of the site lies within zone C2 as per the Development Advice Maps accompanying TAN 15: 
Development and Flood Risk.  The aim of TAN 15 is to: 
 

- Direct new development away from those areas which are at high risk of flooding 
 

- Where development has to be considered in high risk areas (zone C) only those 
developments which can be justified on the basis of the tests outlined in Section 6 and 7 are 
located within such areas. 

 
Paragraph 6.2 of TAN 15 states that new development should be directed away from areas which are 
within zone C and towards land in zone A, otherwise to zone B, where river or coastal flooding will be 
less of an issue…Development, including transport infrastructure, will only be justified if it can be 
demonstrated that:- 
 
i) its location in zone C is necessary to assist, or be part of, a local authority regeneration initiative or 
a local authority regeneration initiative or a local authority strategy required to sustain an existing 

Page 22



settlement; or 
ii) its location in zone C is necessary to contribute to key employment objectives supported by the 
local authority, and other key partners, to sustain an existing settlement or region; 
 
and 
iii) it concurs with the aims of PPW and meets the definition of previously developed land; and 
iv) the potential consequences of a flooding event for the particular type of development have been 
considered, and in terms of the criteria contained in sections 5 and 7 and appendix 1 found to be 
acceptable. 
 
Following discussions with the applicant in regards to Flooding, the effects of the development on the 
surrounding properties and area and the scale of the development the scheme has been reduced and 
the number of containers has been reduced from 163 to 103.  Due to the reduction of the scale of the 
development only 12 of the proposed containers lie partially within the Flood Zone.  Natural Resource 
Wales have confirmed that the details submitted in support of the application confirm that the flood 
risk is acceptable in that the ‘development proposal’ is to be flood free and floor levels are above the 
1%0.1% estimated flood levels and have recommended a conditional approval. 
 
Effect on surrounding properties – The site borders the rear of the dwellings on Tan yr Efail 
residential estate.  However the rear of the containers will at their shortest point be 6 metres away 
from the rear boundary of the adjoining properties.  A Tree Survey has been submitted which states 
that some trees will have to be removed as part of the development however new trees will be planted 
in accordance with a scheme to be approved by the local planning authority and this will be 
conditioned.  This will ensure that the site is screened and act as a visual barrier to the adjoining 
properties.  Concern has been raised regarding the use of the site 24 hours a day and it is considered 
reasonable to include a condition to restrict the hours of operation of the site. 
 
Effect on surrounding area – As stated above a Tree Survey has been submitted and although 
some trees are to be removed as part of the development the new tree planting will ensure that the 
development will not have a detrimental impact on the surrounding area.   
 
 7. Conclusion  
 
The proposal complies with current policies and will not have a detrimental impact on the amenities of 
neighbouring properties or surrounding area.   
 
 8. Recommendation 
 
To permit the development subject to conditions. 
 
(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 
expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
(02) The floor levels of the proposed containers shall be set no lower than 6.75m AOD.  No 
raising of ground levels/infilling beneath containers cantilevered. 
 
Reason: To safeguard flood risk on and off-site 
 
(03) The proposed development site is crossed by public sewers with the approximate 
positions being marked o the attached Statutory Public Sewer Record.  The position shall be 

Page 23



accurately located and marked out on site before works commenced and no building or 
structure shall be carried out within the following easements: 
 
900mm surface water sewer – 8 metres either side of the centre line of the public sewer 
 
600mm surface water sewer – 5 meters either side of the centre line of the public sewer 
 
229mm combined sewer – 3 metres either side of the centre line of the public sewer 
 
Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewer and avoid damage thereto protect the health and 
safety of existing residents and ensure no pollution of or detriment to the environment 
 
(04) No surface water and / or land drainage shall be allowed to connect either directly or 
indirectly to the public sewerage network.   
 
Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and 
safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the environment. 
 
(05) The removal of the vegetation shall not take place between the 1st March and 30th August 
in any year unless the site has been checked for the presence of nesting birds by a suitably 
qualified ecologist and certified as being free of nesting birds.  Should nesting birds be found 
to be present, no development shall take place until the chicks have fledged.   
 
Reason: To safeguard any nesting birds which may be present on the site. 
 
(06) The use shall not be carried out outside the hours of 7.00am to 8.00pm Monday to Sunday. 
  
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity 
 
(07) All tree works shall be carried out in accordance with the details contained within the Tree 
Management Survey that was carried out by Richards Moorhead and Laing Ltd and submitted 
under planning reference 19C1174/FR. 
 
Reason: In the interest of amenity 
 
(08) A scheme of new planting within Zone B (as identified by the Tree Management Survey) 
shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  The approved 
planting scheme shall be implemented in the first season following the construction of the 
gabion walls. 
 
Reason: In the interest of amenity 
 
(09) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 
the plan(s)  and document(s) submitted below: 
  

Drawing / Document number Date Received Plan Description 

Location Plan 07/03/2016 Location Plan 
 

Site Plan 09/05/2016 Proposed site levles 

Proposed Site Plan 01/03/2016 Proposed Site Plan 

E0783.PTR.RI 12/04/2016 Porosity Tests  
 

Page 24



Flood Consequence 
Assessment  

30/03/2016 Flood Consequence Assessment 

Preliminary Ecological 
Appraisal 

12/02/2016 Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 

Tamlite Technical 
Department 

07/01/2016 Lighting Details 

Tamlite Technical 
Department 

07/01/2016 Lighting Details 

Photographs 10/11/2015 Lighting Details 
 

Photographs 10/11/2015 Access Details 
 

Product Datasheet 10/11/2015 Lighting Details 

Container Details 10/11/2015 Container Details 

Design and Access 
Statement 

10/11/2015 Design and Access Statement 

Fence Details 10/11/2015 Fence Details 
 

Tree Management Survey 27/06/2016 Tree Management Survey 

  
under planning application reference 19C1174/FR. 
  
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 
 
In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 
before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 
go to the heart of the permission/ development. 
 
 

 
 

Page 25



7.2  Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                     Remainder Applications 
   

Rhif y Cais:     20C102L/EIA/RE     Application Number 
 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 
 

TPG Wind Ltd 
 

Cais llawn i godi 11 o dyrbinau gwynt gyda 6 tyrbin gwynt hyd at 900kw gydag uchafswm 
uchder hwb o hyd at 55m, diametr rotor o hyd at 52m, ac uchafswm uchder i ben y llafn o hyd 
at 79m, a 3 tyrbin gwynt hyd at 900kw gydag uchder hwb o hyd at 45m, diametr rotor o hyd at 

52m, ac uchder mwyaf i flaen y llafn o hyd at 70m, a 2 tyrbin gwynt hyd at 900kw gydag uchder 
hwb o hyd at 45m, diametr rotor o hyd at 52m, ac uchder mwyaf i flaen y llafn o hyd at 66m 

uwchben y ddaear ynghyd â chreu padiau craen, sylfeini, ceblau trydan o dan ddaear, 
gwelliannau i rannau o’r trac presennol, creu traciau mynediad newydd, gwneud gwaith i'r 

briffordd, estyniad i’r is-orsaf 33kv bresennol, codi is-orsaf 11kv newydd, codi anemomedr a 
chompownd adeiladu a storio dros dro a ardal gwaith concrit (fydd yn cynnwys cael gwared ar 
y fferm wynt presennol) yn / Full application for the erection of 11 wind turbines comprising of 
6, up to 900kW wind turbines with a maximum hub height of up to 55m, rotor diameter of up to 
52m, and a maximum upright vertical tip height of up to 79m, and 3, up to 900kW wind turbines 
with a maximum hub height of up to 45m, rotor diameter of up to 52m, and a maximum upright 
vertical tip height of up to 70m, and 2, up to 900kW wind turbines with a maximum hub height 
of up to 45m, rotor diameter of up to 52m, and a maximum upright vertical tip height of up to 

66m above ground together with the creation of crane pads, foundations, underground 
electricity cables, improvements to parts of the existing track, works to the highway, the 

creation of new access tracks, an extension to the existing 33kV substation, the erection of a 
new 11kV substation, the erection of an anemometer and temporary construction and storage 
compounds and batching plant (which would also entail the de-commissioning of the existing 

wind farm) at 
   

Rhyd y Groes Wind Farm, Rhosgoch 
   
 

 

Page 26



 
 

Planning Committee: 27/07/2016 
 
Report of Head of Regulation and Economic  Development Service (Amec Foster Wheeler) 
 
 Recommendation:   
 
Permit. 
 
 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  
 
This application is for the ‘repowering’ of the existing Rhyd-y-Groes windfarm.  The application is an 
EIA application which must be referred to the Committee for determination. In addition, it has been 
decided that delegated powers should not be used in any case, where they apply, in connection with 
wind turbine developments. 
 
The application has been delayed in coming to committee in order to allow the applicant to respond to 
objections and requests for further information received from:  
 

 Natural Resources Wales in relation to effects upon the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty; 
 The Council in relation to effects upon the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and the 

landscape and visual effects upon the wider countryside; 
 The Council in relation to effects upon the settings of the Cemaes Conservation Area, the 

church of St Peirio and Cemaes Mill; 
 The Defence Infrastructure Organisation in respect of the effects upon radar installations at 

RAF Valley; 
 The Welsh Government (Department of Economy, Science & Transport) in relation to the 

width of the road at Black Bridge, Holyhead to accommodate the transport of the turbine 
components. 
 

The response of the applicant to these requests has resulted in the scheme being amended.  A 
scheme amendment statement was received in June 2016. In summary, this amendment: 
 

 removed turbines 12 and 13 at the eastern extent of the site; 
 reduced the height of turbines 3, 4 and 11. 

 
 1. Proposal and Site  
 
The application site accommodates the existing Rhyd-y-Groes windfarm and predominantly 
comprises improved grassland used for grazing but with about 10% under arable use.  The site is 
accessed off the A5025 along existing roads, farm tracks and via additional tracks proposed to the 
base of the turbines.  
 
The proposal is to replace the existing, consented Rhyd-y Groes wind farm which consists of 24 wind 
turbines with a tip height of 46m.  This wind farm has been operational since 1992 and it does not 
have a time-limited consent. 
 
The description of the amended proposed 9.9MW development is now: 
 
Full application for the erection of 11 wind turbines comprising of six, up to 900kW wind turbines with 
a maximum hub height of up to 55 m, rotor diameter of up to 52 m, and a maximum upright vertical tip 
height of up to 79 m; three, up to 900kW wind turbines with a maximum hub height of up to 45 m, 
rotor diameter of up to 52 m, and a maximum upright vertical tip height of up to 70 m, and two, up to 

Page 27



900kW wind turbines with a maximum hub height of up to 45 m, rotor diameter of up to 52 m and a 
maximum upright vertical tip height of up to 66 m above ground level. The creation of crane pads, 
foundations, underground electricity cables, improvements to parts of the existing track, works to the 
highway, the creation of new access tracks, an extension to the existing 33kV substation, the erection 
of a new 11kV substation, the erection of an anemometer and temporary construction and storage 
compounds and batching plant (which would also entail the de-commissioning of the existing wind 
farm) at Rhyd y Groes Wind Farm, Rhosgoch.  
 
In addition to a supporting Planning Statement and a Design and Access Statement, the application is 
supported by the following details submitted as part of an Environmental Statement: 
 

 Introduction, site selection and design evolution; 
 Project description, policy background and project benefits; 
 Landscape and visual impact assessment (including residential amenity assessment) 
 Ecology assessments (including ornithology and bat assessments); 
 Hydrology, geology and hydrogeological assessments; 
 Noise and shadow flicker assessments; 
 Cultural heritage, traffic and transport and air quality assessments; 
 Existing infrastructure and socioeconomic and tourism assessments. 

 
In addition, further Cultural Heritage, Landscape and Visual and residential amenity assessments 
have been provided.  Visualisations and wireframes have been submitted to support the proposals. 
 
 2. Key Issue(s)  
 
Principle of the development 
Effect upon the landscape and the special qualities of the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
Effect upon the setting of Cemaes Conservation area and listed buildings 
Residential Amenity  
 
 3. Main Policies  
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 
C7 Renewable Energy 
D1 AONB 
D3 Landscape Conservation Area 
D22 Listed Buildings 
 
Ynys Môn Local Plan 
1 General 
30 Landscape 
31 Landscape 
32 Landscape 
35 Nature Conservation 
41 Listed Buildings 
45 Renewable Energy 
 
Stopped Ynys Môn Unitary Development Plan 
GP1 Development Control Guidance 
EP 18 Renewable Energy 
EN1 Landscape Character 
EN2 Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
EN4 Biodiversity 

Page 28



EN13 Conservation of Buildings 
 
Joint Local Development Plan Anglesey & Gwynedd (2011 - 2026) Deposit Plan (2015) 
Strategic Policy PS5: Sustainable Development 
Strategic Policy PS6: Alleviating and Adapting to the Effects of Climate Change 
Policy PCYFF1: Development Criteria 
Policy PCYFF2: Design and Place Shaping 
Policy PCYFF3: Design and Landscaping 
Strategic Policy PS7: Renewable Energy Technology 
Policy ADN1: On-Shore Wind Energy 
Strategic Policy PS16: Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment 
Policy AMG2: Protecting and Enhancing Features and Qualities that are Unique to the Local 
Landscape Character 
Policy AMG4:Local Biodiversity Conservation 
Policy AMG5: Protecting Sites of Regional or Local Significance 
 
National Planning Policy and Circulars 
Planning Policy Wales Edition 8 (2016) 
Technical Advice Note 5 Planning and Nature Conservation (2009) 
Technical Advice Note 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (July 2010). 
Technical Advice Note 8 Planning for Renewable Energy (2005) 
Circular 61/96 Planning and the Historic Environment: Historic Buildings and Conservation Areas 
 
Guidance and Best Practice 
Practice Guidance: Planning for Renewable and Low Carbon Energy - A Toolkit for Planners, Welsh 
Assembly Government (2010) 
Practice Guidance: Planning Implications of Renewable and Low Energy (February 2011) 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: Onshore Wind Energy (January 2013). 
Natural England Technical Information Note TIN051 (Bats and Inshore Wind Turbines) Interim 
Guidance 
Natural England Technical Information Note TIN059 (Bats and Single Large Wind Turbines) Interim 
Guidance. 
The Assessment and Rating of Noise From Wind Farms ETSU-R-97 The Working Group on Noise 
from Wind Turbines  
 
 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  
 
Councillor J Griffith: Requests that the application be determined by the Planning and Orders 
Committee. 
 
Amlwch Town Council: Fully supportive.   
 
Cylch y Garn Community Council: No objection.  The response does note that development will be 
visible from Cylch y Garn and from the AONB and requests that consideration be given to local 
economic benefits. 
 
Llanbadrig Community Council: Objection.  Requests that the developer considers moving the 6 
turbines away from Cemaes and also, if possible, consider reducing their height to 50m therefore 
reducing their impact on local residents and visitors to the area. 
 
Welsh Government (CADW): The visual effects of the proposals are likely to impact across a wide 
area.  Werthyr Standing Stone (AN150). This impact is unlikely to be considered significant in itself; 

Page 29



however, this effect must be considered alongside the numerous moderate adverse impacts listed in 
the determination of this application. Whilst we would acknowledge that a 25 year lifespan is clearly 
an improvement on the existing consent, Cadw would not consider this a relevant factor in the 
assessment of setting impacts.  Some amelioration is being considered to help promote and enhance 
an understanding of the conservation area. Should the planning authority be minded to grant consent 
in this case, this type of amelioration would also be appropriate in relation to setting impacts where 
access, signage, interpretation and management of monuments along with the development of 
strategies for education and engagement with the local community could provide valuable public 
benefit. Such options should also be considered as a method for disseminating the results of any 
archaeological investigations that are undertaken in conjunction with this development. Cadw would 
agree with the assessment that there is no impact on the setting of the registered park and garden at 
Cestyll in this case.  
 
Natural Resources Wales: Objection now withdrawn following submission of amended scheme 
‘providing these modifications are incorporated into the scheme NRW would not object to the 
application as we consider the proposals would be unlikely to have a significant adverse effect on the 
AONB’. 
 
NRW find that the current wind development of Rhyd y Groes has an established significant effect 
upon the setting of the AONB that whilst not conflicting with views of many of the area’s most scenic 
aspects of coastline, bays and sea views, it is at times a conspicuous feature lying within the AONB’s 
setting, experienced within elevated panoramic views and inland orientated views.  
 
In regards to effects upon the AONB’s special qualities set out in the area’s management plan, the 
current development conflicts with the area’s Expansive Views and Tranquillity.  The juxtaposition of a 
wind development on the edge of the AONB has significantly affected the integrity of the designated 
landscape and this is the baseline for judging any additional effects of the repowering proposal. 
 
With regard to the current scheme we have found that the eastern group of turbines has greatest 
bearing on the experience of the bay at Porth Wen, where Natural Beauty scenic quality, 
distinctiveness, cultural heritage and special qualities are particularly notable from Graig Wen and 
Torllwyn in addition to LVIA viewpoints 5 and 6. NRW have discussed a number of development 
options with the applicant to consider whether effects could be reduced to an acceptable degree. 
Options have considered both the height of the proposed turbines, change in the number and position 
of turbines relative to each other and the landscape, as experienced within AONB views. We consider 
the deletion of turbines T12, T13 and reduction in height of T11 to 70m high to rotor tip would result in 
a development that would be acceptable for the following reasons:  
 

 The deletion of turbines T12, T13 would avoid wind development extending further eastwards 
than the current wind development edge, which would have resulted in greater intrusion upon 
the Snowdonia skyline (expansive views and views of Snowdonia are a special quality 
referred to in the management plan). No additional effects upon expansive views of Snowdon 
would occur.  

 The reduction in height of turbine T11 and its lower siting in the landscape would result in a 
structure of comparable height compared to existing turbines at the eastern end. No 
additional effects upon expansive views of Snowdon would occur.  

 
The replacement of the current 13 shorter turbines with 5 taller turbines in the eastern group (reduced 
from 7) would result in the following changes:  
 

 Wider spacing between turbines would improve the visual balance of development in the 
landscape;  

 Larger rotor blades that rotate more slowly would create less visual distraction;  
 Greater turbine height is likely to make the development a more clearly seen component of 

Page 30



the landscape and, therefore, potentially more conspicuous.  
 
We consider reducing the effects of development clutter and visual movement are benefits that would 
go some way to help moderate the effects of taller structures. This is not a cancelling of effects, but a 
change in the nature of effects between the existing and proposed development that we consider 
would result in a marginal difference overall. The visual perceptions of a wind farm development 
inland of the AONB would not change. 
 
NRW have raised no objection to groundwater, flood-risk or waste/pollution issues.  NRW consider 
that the proposal would have a marginally beneficial ecological effects due to the increased distance 
of the turbine blades from hedgerows. 
 
Isle of Anglesey County Council (Landscape Section):  Requested further information on the 
effects upon the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and the landscape and visual effects upon the 
wider countryside.  Further submissions to satisfy these requests were: 
 

 Natural Resources Wales and Isle of Anglesey County Council LVIA Response dated 
September 2015 (SLR);  

 4 Cumulative Wireframes 16.09.15 for Viewpoints 14, 15,18 and 21;  
 AONB Special Qualities assessment dated October 2015 (SLR); 
 Scheme Amendment Statement dated June 2016 (Natural Power).  

 
In response to the additional information the Council’s Landscape section noted: 
 

 From viewpoint 3, the removal of turbine 12 and 13 removes likely overlap with the turbines at 
Ysgellog with a less cluttered layout visible than currently. The reduction in tip height of 
turbine 11 merges better with the Ysgellog profile. The assessment notes that effects would 
change from Moderate to Slight, considered as not significant.  

 From viewpoint 5, the removal of turbines 12 and 13 is less conspicuous in the visualisation. 
The windfarm would not extend to the east but views of turbines to the west are greater than 
with the existing scheme. In our opinion, the amended scheme would continue to have 
significant adverse effects on the AONB special quality of Peace and Tranquillity.  

 From viewpoint 6, the removal of turbines 12 and 13 removes the more conspicuous 
overlapping turbines situated above Porth Wen to the left of Snowdonia. The effects are 
reduced from what was originally proposed, but would in our opinion still represent significant 
adverse effects on AONB special qualities of Peace and Tranquillity and Expansive Views. 
This is because the current windfarm, although more cluttered, is significantly less prominent.  

 From viewpoint 7, the removal of turbines 12 and 13 removes the clustering of turbines to the 
east. There would be as noted, a reduction in visual clutter from here that even when 
balanced against the increased height of the proposed turbines, does not produce additional 
significant effects.  

 
The removal of turbines 12 and 13 would reduce predicted effects from viewpoint 23 and views from 
the A5025. It would also reduce effects from viewpoint 4. It would further reduce visual clutter from 
elevated viewpoints (medium to long-distance) where we have previously noted that repowering 
would reduce visual effects. Viewpoints 5 and 6 however, would still experience additional significant 
adverse effects. 
 
Isle of Anglesey County Council (Built Environment):  Requested further information on the 
effects upon the heritage assets of the church of St Peirio, Cemaes Mill, Cestyll garden and the 
Cemaes Conservation Area. Further submissions to satisfy these requests were: 
 

 Response to Comments of Senior Planning & Conservation Officer dated 3 November 2015 
(Wessex Archaeology); 

 Scheme Amendment Statement dated June 2016 (Natural Power). 

Page 31



  
In response to the information received the Council’s Built Environment section  noted that the 
Amendment Statement states that the amended scheme will reduce the impact of the eastern group 
of turbines upon the as Church of St Peirio and that width of view of the remaining proposed turbine 
array is considerably reduced although still has a minor adverse impact.   
 
Isle of Anglesey County Council (Ecology & Environment):  Requires a summary table of all 
ecological mitigation measures should be produced. 
 
CEMP and Ecological Clerk of Works should be part of the same package covered for wider ecology 
and ensure that adequate coverage of issues such as non-disturbance of nesting.  Suggest habitats 
created before operational phase, then monitored/ maintained along the lines suggested.   
 
Boundary removal proposed is only acceptable if mitigation is undertaken in full. 
 
Isle of Anglesey County Council Chief Engineer (Network) Drainage Authority:  Requires greater 
detail of intended disposal of surface water is required and that soakaways should comply with BRE 
digest 365 or similar.  Site welfare must be served by non-mains drainage.   
 
Details of intended means to deal with surface water drainage can be conditioned. 
 
Isle of Anglesey County Council (Public Rights of Way): No objection. 
 
Isle of Anglesey County Council (Public Protection): No objection.  Noise levels meet the 
guidance set out within the Council’s SPG except where other development conditions apply and 
welcomes the applicant undertaking that no deterioration of consented noise conditions will occur.  
Requests details where Low Noise Modes are applied through planning conditions.  Noise levels 
appear consistent with operational scheme – requests noise contours.  Headroom apparent between 
predicted levels and headroom proposed by the applicant – a risk for cumulative noise with other 
applications – request that the applicant reduces its headroom. Wishes to see a procedure for the 
assessment of amplitude modulation and to control tonality through condition as refed in SPG and 
ES.   
 
In response to the above comments, a planning condition has been agreed with applicant. 
 
Ofcom: No objection subject to additional information being provided. 
 
NATS (En Route) Public Limited Company: No objection. 
 
Civil Aviation Authority: No objection. 
 
Coal Authority: No objection. 
 
Welsh Water: No objection. 
 
Defence Infrastructure Organisation:  Objection now withdrawn following submission of amended 
scheme and reassessment.  
 
Health & Safety Executive – PADHI: No objection, Defers to the Office for Nuclear Regulation. 
 
Office for Nuclear Regulation: Defers to Council emergency planning. 
 

Page 32



The Welsh Government (Department of Economy, Science & Transport): Objection removed 
following submission of further information in relation to the width of the road at Black Bridge, 
Holyhead to accommodate the transport of the turbine components. 
 
The Welsh Government (Environment):  No objection. Unlikely to be implications for Best and Most 
Versatile Agricultural Land. 
 
Snowdonia National Park Authority: Because of their location, the proposals will not impact 
adversely on views out of the Snowdonia National Park.  
 
Gwynedd County Council / Isle of Anglesey County Council – Joint Planning Unit:. Requests 
further consideration of the buffer from the AONB and whether any additional impact above the 
existing wind farm on the AONB is deemed acceptable.  States that the key aspect is the Landscape 
and Visual Impact of the proposed scheme especially on sensitive receptors such as the AONB with 
the gain being a fixed timescale for the proposal and a reduction in the overall number of turbines 
against the fact that these would be significantly higher than those currently on site.  Notes that 
consultation responses should assist with an assessment of the potential landscape and visual 
impacts as well as for other issues. 
 
In relation to residential amenity assessment, agrees that the separation distances advocated within 
Gillespies report are the most appropriate but requests that the 600m and 800m distances should be 
used for the two height categories rather than the pro-rata distances of 569.3m and 642.5m used.  
Aside from this, the response also requests clarification whether there is agreement over the 
mitigation for the two dwellings close to the threshold for overbearing effects. 
The response notes that the scheme falls within the maximum scale of 25MW included within the 
SPG and makes a number of suggestions and requests clarification on the following issues to be 
addressed with other consultees:  
 

 whether a contribution towards footpath improvements, interpretation facilities or improved 
signage to offset the noted effects on the coastal path and the conservation areas has been 
resolved;  

 whether consideration should be given to only granting permission for a period of 2 years to 
ensure that development is implemented within a suitable timeframe;  

 whether consideration needs to be given towards ensuring there are sufficient funds available 
to undertake the decommissioning of the site at the end of its lifetime with a clear mechanism 
(e.g. a bond) to provide funding, in case the operator/ owner of the site is no longer 
commercially active at the time; 

 whether the MoD objection to the proposed development has been resolved.  
 
Gwynedd County Council – Minerals and Waste: No objection but requests condition to secure the 
restoration of any borrow pits as well as other restoration work to the satisfaction of the planning 
authority. 
 
The Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service: No objection subject to a condition securing a 
watching brief.  
 
Conwy County Council: No comments. 
 
Council for the Protection of Rural Wales: Objection. Contrary to TAN8 protection of AONB.  
Contrary to SPG threshold of 2km standoff to AONB.  Impact upon residents and more valuable 
tourism industry.  Refers to SPG residential standoff – cites visual amenity, noise and flicker.  Cites 
devaluation of property.  States that the SPG was adopted contrary to wishes of population. 
 

Page 33



Friends of the Earth: Support.  States supporting planning policies within Planning Policy Wales.  
Cites poor approval rate in Anglesey.  Notes areas of concern: visual impacts – supportive of 
applicant’s assessments.  Birds – supportive of applicant’s assessment (there are few Lapwing –
although apparently locally important).  Bats – supportive of applicant’s assessment In that 
repowering would reduce risk of collision.  Noise and shadow flicker – supportive of mitigation 
measures.  Tourism – no published evidence of impact – no significant impact on tourism within 
30km.  DECC survey suggests low level of objection to windfarms.  States that benefits of scheme 
outweigh assessed residual impacts. 
 
General Public: Seventeen letters of objection have been received from the public and the following 
points have been raised: 
 

 Existing turbines should be removed and site restored. 
 Would introduce an industrial structure with increased visual intrusion at Cemaes Bay.   
 Would be unacceptable in proximity to the Heritage Coast. 
 Would be unacceptable in proximity to the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  
 Would be contrary to the accepted buffer zone in Supplementary Planning Guidance. 
 Would have a detrimental effect on the more valuable tourism industry.   
 Would extend areas affected by noise and flicker issues.   
 Would pose a threat to otters and other observed species. 
 Would have a detrimental impact upon cultural heritage and the settings of monuments.   
 Would have a cumulative impact with other turbine development at Ysgellog and Tai Hen. 
 Would proliferate a flawed technology with poor and expensive method of generation. 
 Would have a detrimental impact upon health and well-being. 
 Would give rise to detrimental construction traffic impacts for residents/tourists. 
 Would have a detrimental impact upon the amenity for users of footpaths. 
 Would be inconsistent with Geo-park status. 

 
 5. Relevant Planning History  
 
20/C/102/C Planning permission for 24 300KW Bonus Turbines with a hub height of 31m, a tip height 
of 46m and a combined site generating capacity of 7.2MW. The constructed scheme also consists of 
access tracks, met mast, substation and control building, underground cables, external transformers 
adjacent to each turbine and crane hard standings.  
 
This consent was granted in perpetuity. 
 
20/C/102/H/SCO/RE Scoping opinion for the erection of a wind farm of up to 13 turbines.  Nine of 
these turbines to have a tip height of 79m with four turbines with a tip height of 70m.  The scheme 
also includes crane pads, site tracks foundations, underground cables, anemometer mast, extension 
to the 33 kv substation, a new 11 kv substation and a temporary construction and storage compound. 
 
 6. Main Planning Considerations  
 
Scoping Opinion 
 
Scoping opinion 20/C/102/H/SCO/RE dated 25/03/14 and issued according to Regulation 10 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (England & Wales) Regulations 
1999 is relevant to the application.  This established the agreement of the applicant and the planning 
authority to the scope of assessments required for the supporting EIA. 
 
Principle of Development – Renewable Energy Planning Policy 
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan Policy C7 states:  

Page 34



 
“There will be a presumption in favour of renewable energy projects provided that the impacts upon 
the locality are acceptable to the local planning authority. Where applicable, the proposals should be 
supported by an environmental assessment.” 
 
Ynys Môn Local Plan Policy 45 states:  
 
“Renewable energy projects will be permitted where it can be clearly demonstrated that there will not 
be any unacceptable impact on 
Landscape character,  
Sites of international, national or local importance for nature conservation,  
species which are of nature conservation importance  
the standard of amenity enjoyed by the resident and tourist population and vi. Essential public 
services and communications”. 
 
Stopped Ynys Môn Unitary Development Plan Policy 8B- Energy Developments states: 
 
“Applications for the development of renewable and non-renewable energy resources will be 
permitted where it can be demonstrated that there will be no unacceptable adverse impact upon the 
environment. Preference will be given to the development of clean and renewable energy sources, 
but proposals for non-renewable energy projects will be permitted if they encourage the maximum use 
of energy efficiency within their design”. 
 
Policy EP18 (Renewable Energy) of the Stopped UDP states renewable energy projects will be 
permitted where it can clearly be demonstrated that there will not be any significant adverse impact 
against a number of listed criteria. 
 
Joint Local Development Plan (Submitted for Examination) Policy ADN1 (On Shore Wind Energy) 
states: 
 
“On shore wind turbine proposals will be permitted subject to an assessment of their environmental 
and sustainability impacts” and that “…Medium-Scale wind farms will only be granted on urban / 
industrial brownfield sites or when the proposal involves the repowering of existing wind farms…”. 
 
Medium-scale wind farms are categorised as between 5-25MW, up to 9 in number, up t 80m to blade 
tip and viewed as a large group.  
 
The policy states that all proposals must conform to the following criteria: 
 
i. the proposal will not have an unacceptable impact upon visual amenity or landscape character 
through: the number, scale, size, design and siting of turbines and associated infrastructure especially 
in areas designated for their historic or landscape value; 
 
ii. the proposal will not result in demonstrable harm to biodiversity including statutorily protected sites 
and species in particular bats and birds; 
 
iii. the proposal will not result in significant harm to the safety or amenity of sensitive receptors 
including effect from noise, shadow flicker and impact on public health, and will not have an 
unacceptable impact on roads, rail or aviation safety; 
 
iv. the proposal will not result in significant harm to the residential visual amenities of nearby 
residents; 

Page 35



 
v. the proposal will not result in unacceptable electromagnetic interference to communications 
installations, radar or air traffic control systems, emergency services communications, or other 
telecommunication systems; 
 
vi. the proposal will not have unacceptable cumulative impacts in relation to existing wind turbines, 
those implemented and those which have permission, and other prominent landscape features; 
 
vii. turbines and associated infrastructure will, at the end of the operational life of the facility, be 
removed and an appropriate land restoration and aftercare scheme agreed. 
 
Planning Policy Wales (8th Edition) Section 12.8 gives strong support for renewable energy projects 
in line with the Welsh Assembly Government’s Energy Policy Statement (2010), paragraph 12.8.1 
states: 
 
“The UK is subject to the requirements of the EU Renewable Energy Directive. These include a UK 
target of 15% of energy from renewables by 2020. The UK Renewable Energy Roadmap sets the 
path for the delivery of these targets, promoting renewable energy to reduce global warming and to 
secure future energy supplies. The Welsh Government is committed to playing its part by delivering 
an energy programme which contributes to reducing carbon emissions as part of our approach to 
tackling climate change” 
 
Planning Policy Wales Paragraph 12.8.2 states: 
 
“…Planning policy at all levels should facilitate delivery of both the ambition set out in Energy Wales: 
A Low Carbon Transition and UK and European targets on renewable energy.”  The ambition includes 
for the attainment of a target of 2000MW of onshore wind in Wales which is expected to be provided 
by 2015-17. 
 
Section 12.10.1 reproduced below highlights matters that should be taken into account in dealing with 
renewable and low carbon energy development and associated infrastructure by the local planning 
authority. This covers the positive aspects such as contribution to meeting national, UK and European 
targets and wider environmental, social and economic benefits. It also highlights the need to consider 
impact on the natural heritage, the coast and the historic environment and the need to minimise 
impacts on local communities. Other matters such as mitigation and infrastructure matters i.e. grid 
connection and transportation network are also highlighted within this section as follows: 
 
“12.10.1 In determining applications for renewable and low carbon energy development and 
associated infrastructure local planning authorities should take into account:  
 

 the contribution a proposal will play in meeting identified national, UK and European targets 
and potential for renewable energy, including the contribution to cutting greenhouse gas 
emissions;  

 the wider environmental, social and economic benefits and opportunities from renewable and 
low carbon energy development;  

 the impact on the natural heritage (see 5.5), the Coast (see 5.6) and the Historic Environment 
(see 6.5);  

 the need to minimise impacts on local communities to safeguard quality of life for existing and 
future generations;  

 ways to avoid, mitigate or compensate identified adverse impacts;  
 the impacts of climate change on the location, design, build and operation of renewable and 

low carbon energy development. In doing so consider whether measures to adapt to climate 
change impacts give rise to additional impacts (see 4.5);  

 grid connection issues where renewable (electricity) energy developments are proposed; and 

Page 36



 the capacity of and effects on the transportation network relating to the construction and 
operation of the proposal”. 

 
Paragraph 12.8.15 states the impacts from renewable energy developments and associated 
infrastructure will vary depending on their type, location and scale. This requires different policy and 
development control considerations. A table is provided at Figure 12.3 (Renewable and low energy 
scales for planning purposes). The 9.9 MW application subject to this report represents a medium 
sized scheme. 
 
Planning Implications of Renewable and Low Carbon Energy (February 2011) is planning guidance 
which can be regarded as a material consideration contains a different classification in relation to wind 
turbine technologies in Table 3.1. In terms of the “Typical Turbine Rating” the turbine would be 
classed as Small. In terms of a Typical Turbine Height (to blade tip) the turbine would be of a Medium 
scale. A note in relation to the table states – The scales are not definitive and are used for illustration 
purposes only.  
 
The Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance Onshore Wind Energy refers to Practice Guidance 
– Planning Implications of Renewable and Low Carbon Energy (February 2011). At 6.8 and 6.9 of the 
SPG it categorises turbines of up to 65 meters to blade tip as medium and states “For the purpose of 
clarity in relation to different types of applications the council will use this height range categorisation 
to define small, medium and large turbines as a basis for dealing with onshore wind turbine 
applications.” 
 
The Onshore Wind Energy SPG 2013 replaced the Wind Energy SPG (1994). As regard the weight to 
be attributed to be attributed to the SPG Onshore Wind Energy (2013) it is a material consideration 
having been subject to consultation and a resolution to adopt by the council. This SPG was subject to 
two public consultations and was amended in response to comments received during the second 
consultation periods. The revised version was subsequently approved by the Council on the 24th 

January 2013, subject to additional amendments in relation to: 
 

 separation distances; 
 2km buffer to the AONB and height restrictions; 
 cumulative impact on the community; and a formal requirement for a bond to decommission 

the site. 
 
However, and due to the late addition of these criteria, Inspectors at appeal decision have attributed 
very limited weight to the three amendments to the SPG listed above. 
 
Technical Advice Note 8 Renewables (2005) (paragraph 14) states the Assembly Government has a 
target of 4TWh of electricity per annum to be produced by renewable energy by 2010 and 7TWh by 
2020. In order to meet these targets the Assembly Government has concluded that 800MW of 
additional installed capacity is required from onshore wind sources by 2010. The 800MW was to be 
provided within designated Strategic Search Areas (SSAs).  This target was not met in 2010.  
 
Paragraph 2.12 of TAN 8 states the Assembly Government expects local planning authorities to 
encourage, via their development plan policies and decisions, proposals for renewable energy. 
 
Paragraph 2.13 states: 
 
“Most areas outside SSAs should remain free of large wind power schemes. Local planning 
authorities may wish to consider the cumulative impact of small schemes in areas outside of the SSAs 
and establish suitable criteria for separation distances from each other and from the perimeter of 
existing wind power schemes or the SSAs.” 

Page 37



 
Paragraph 2.14 states that: 
 
“There will also be opportunities to re-power and/or extend existing windfarms which may be located 
outside SSAs and these should be encouraged provided that the environmental and landscape 
impacts are acceptable.” 
 
Technical Advice Note 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (2010) contains the following 
guidance in Section 2: 
 
“2.1.1 The planning system has a key role to play in supporting the delivery of sustainable rural 
communities. It can help to ensure that appropriate development takes place in the right place 
at the right time by making sufficient land available to provide homes and employment opportunities 
for local people, helping to sustain rural services. Simultaneously, the planning system must respond 
to the challenges posed by climate change, for example by accommodating the need for renewable 
energy generation. It must also protect and enhance the natural and historic environment and 
safeguard the countryside and open spaces. The overall goal for the planning system is to support 
living and working rural communities in order that they are economically, socially and environmentally 
sustainable. Planning authorities should seek to strengthen rural communities by helping to ensure 
that existing residents can work and access services locally using low carbon travel and obtain a 
higher proportion of their energy needs from local renewable sources.” 
 
The policies listed above provide a presumption in favour of renewable energy developments subject 
to detailed considerations. The impacts from renewable energy developments will also vary 
depending on their location and scale and require different policy and development control 
considerations. The principle of the development is still considered acceptable subject to detailed 
considerations below. 
 
It is significant to note that the proposal is a repowering of an existing development that is consented 
in perpetuity.  There is no planning condition in place to secure its removal at the end of its 
operational life and it could be a redundant landscape feature for many years to come.   
 
For the purposes of determining the acceptability of the proposed scheme, the judgement can 
therefore only be formed on the additional impacts of the proposed scheme against the current 
baseline which includes the existing windfarm.  This judgement cannot be made in comparison with a 
virgin greenfield site. 
 
Landscape and Visual Impact - Consideration against relevant planning policy. 
 
The application is supported by a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) prepared by 
consultants SLR. The assessment includes a Zone of Theoretical Visibility Map (ZTV) together with 
photomontages, viewpoint photographs and wireframe images.  
 
These have been augmented by further submissions in respect of the AONB and in support of an 
amended scheme in response to requests for additional information by officers and by Natural 
Resources Wales.  The following policies are considered to be relevant of the consideration of 
landscape and visual effects. 
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan: Policy D1 Protect and Enhance the Environment of Gwynedd states: 
 
‘It is the policy of the county council to protect and enhance the environment of Gwynedd and in 
particular of 

Page 38



 
 The Snowdonia National Park  
 Llŷn And Ynys Môn AONBs  
 Heritage Coast’ 

 
Gwynedd Structure Plan: Policy D3 Landscape Conservation Areas states: 
 
‘Outside of the Snowdonia National Park and the Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, local planning 
authorities will identify landscape conservation areas, including those shown on the key diagram, in 
order to conserve their attributes and they will have particular regard to the special character of each 
locality when considering proposals for development. In order to minimise its impact, development will 
only be permitted if it is capable of being satisfactorily integrated into the landscape.’ 
 
Ynys Môn Local Plan: Policy 31 Landscape states: 
 
‘With the exception of the AONB, and that land which falls within the settlement boundaries as defined 
in the Plan, the island is designated as a Special Landscape Area.  Proposals for development in the 
Special Landscape Area will be expected to have particular regard to the special character of their 
surroundings.  In considering the landscape impact of any proposal, the Council will need to be 
satisfied that the development can be fitted into its surroundings, without unacceptable harm to the 
general landscape character, before planning permission is granted.’ 
 
Stopped Ynys Môn Unitary Development Plan Policy EN1 – Landscape Character states: 
 
“Development will be required to fit into its surroundings without significant harm to the Landscape 
Character Areas”. 
 
Stopped Ynys Môn Unitary Development Plan Policy EN2 – Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
states: 
 
“EN2. Within the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (which includes defined Heritage Coast), the 
Council will give priority to the conservation and enhancement of the landscape. The acceptability of 
development proposals will be evaluated in terms of  
 

i) intrusive impact on the landscape character and visual qualities of the designated areas and, 
ii) the effectiveness of any mitigation measures that are proposed and,  
iii) the necessity of the development and the availability of alternative locations outside the 

designated area.  
Applications for major development and will be subject to the most rigorous examination and include 
an assessment of :  
 

i) the need for the development in terms of national considerations and the public interest, and 
the impact of permitting it or refusing it upon the local economy;  

ii) the cost of and scope for developing outside the designated area or meeting the need for it in 
some other way;  

iii) any detrimental effect on the environment and landscape, and the extent to which that could 
be moderated.  

Any construction or restoration should be carried out to high environmental standards”. 
 
Joint Local Development Plan (Submitted for Examination) Strategic Policy PS16: Conserving and 
Enhancing the Natural Environment states: 
 
“The Councils will manage development so as to conserve and enhance the Plan area’s distinctive 
natural environment, countryside and coastline, and proposals that have an adverse effect on them 

Page 39



will be refused. When considering permitting an application the Planning Authorities will ensure that 
they are: 
1. Safeguarding the Plan area’s habitats and species, geology, history and landscapes; 
2. Protecting and enhancing sites of international, national, regional and local importance and, their 
settings in line with National Policy; 
3. Having regard to the relative significance of the designations in considering the weight to be 
attached to acknowledged interests in line with National Policy; 
4. Protecting and enhancing biodiversity within the Plan area and enhancing and/or restoring 
networks of natural habitats in accordance with the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and Policy AMG4; 
5. Protecting and enhancing biodiversity through networks of green/ blue infrastructure; 
6. Safeguarding internationally, nationally and locally protected species; 
7. Protecting, retaining or enhancing the local character and distinctiveness of the individual 
Landscape Character Areas (in line with Policy AMG2) and Seascape Character Areas (in line with 
Policy AMG3); 
8. Protecting, retaining or enhancing trees, hedgerows or woodland of visual, ecological, historic, 
cultural or amenity value”. 
 
Planning Policy Wales (8th Edition) Section 5.3 gives strong support for the conservation and 
enhancement of AONB.  Paragraphs 5.3.5 to 5.3.6 state: 
 
“5.3.5 The primary objective for designating AONBs is the conservation and enhancement of their 
natural beauty17. Development plan policies and development management decisions affecting 
AONBs should favour conservation of natural beauty, although it will also be appropriate to have 
regard to the economic and social well-being of the areas. Local authorities, other public bodies and 
other relevant authorities have a statutory duty to have regard to AONB purposes18.  
 
5.3.6 National Parks and AONBs are of equal status in terms of landscape and scenic beauty and 
both must be afforded the highest status of protection from inappropriate developments. In 
development plan policies and development management decisions National Parks and AONBs must 
be treated as of equivalent status. In National Parks and AONBs, development plan policies and 
development management decisions should give great weight to conserving and enhancing the 
natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage of these areas”. 
 
The Isle of Anglesey AONB Management Plan evaluates and determines what the special qualities of 
the AONB are, then determines what actions are required to ensure that these qualities are 
conserved and enhanced for future generations.   
 
The relevant qualities in terms of this proposal are: 
 

 Coastal landform features 
 Geological and geomorphological features 
 Traditional agricultural features 
 Expansive views 
 Peace and tranquillity 
 Islands around Anglesey 
 Historic special qualities 

 
As explained previously, the Onshore Wind Energy SPG 2013 is a material consideration however the 
amendments that were included without consultation in relation to separation distances, a 2km buffer 
to the AONB, height restrictions, cumulative impact on the community; and a decommissioning bond 
can be attributed very limited weight given this status and recent appeal decisions. 
 
The Anglesey Landscape Strategy Update 2011 identifies the site as being located within Landscape 

Page 40



Character Area 5 North West Anglesey (LCA) which is described as extending from Amlwch down to 
the A5/A55 corridor between Valley and Caergeiliog.  The key feature of its character is an extensive 
drumlin field which is important in the Welsh context. 
 
Key relevant issues for LCA 5 in terms of this proposal are: 
 

 To have regard to the AONB Management Plan 
 To utilise and retain local field boundary patterns  
 To have regard to the Cemaes Bay Conservation Area SPG 
 As the area is characterised by a number of windfarms, particular emphasis should be given 

to cumulative effects upon the landscape character in the consideration of further 
developments.   

 
Undertaken as part of the preparation of the Joint Local Development Plan, the Anglesey, Gwynedd 
and Snowdonia National Park Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Assessment (dated March 2014), 
notes that in relation to wind energy the Overall Sensitivity A05 North West Anglesey has medium 
sensitivity to wind energy development.  As the study revealed no areas with lower sensitivity, the 
LCA has amongst the highest capacity to accept wind energy development in the study area.   
 
The area is not addressed in the review of local landscape designations (Special Landscape Areas) in 
a report commissioned by the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Planning Policy Unit (JPPU). 
 
A landscape and visual assessment forms part of the environmental statement.  This includes 
visualisations of the development from agreed viewpoints against the current baseline including the 
existing windfarm.  From each viewpoint, the assessment identified the significance of the impact of 
the scheme and the findings of these assessments were broadly agreed by the Council.  The 
following viewpoints were identified as being of significant concern. 
 

 Viewpoint 3 Mynydd Pantygaseg (within the AONB) 
 Viewpoint 5 Porth Wen Trwynbychan (within the AONB) 
 Viewpoint 6 Porth Wen Graig Wen (within the AONB) 
 Viewpoint 7 An Unclassified Road at E239754 N394325 (within the AONB) 
 Viewpoint 14 Porth Wylfa, Penrhyn  
 Viewpoint 15 Wylfa Head 
 Viewpoint 18 Cemaes Village Green 
 Viewpoint 21 A5025 Cemaes 

 
In particular, it was felt that that the applicant had not sufficiently specified the effects upon the 
qualities of the AONB and the following further submissions were provided subsequently: 
 

 Natural Resources Wales and Isle of Anglesey County Council LVIA Response dated 
September 2015 (SLR);  

 4 Cumulative Wireframes 16.09.15 for Viewpoints 14, 15, 18 and 21;  
 AONB Special Qualities assessment dated October 2015 (SLR); 
 Scheme Amendment Statement dated June 2016 (Natural Power) with wireframes and 

visualisations of Viewpoints 3, 5, 6 and 8.  
 
In respect of effects on the qualities of the AONB, officer consideration of the amended scheme 
considered that the removal of two turbines and the reduction in height of a third turbine in the eastern 
array has significant beneficial effects when compared with the previously submitted scheme.  It 
removes cumulative effects with other existing windfarm development to produce a less cluttered 
layout and removes the conspicuous overlapping of turbines above Porth Wen in the view to 
Snowdonia.   
 

Page 41



It would however, still represent significant adverse effects on AONB special qualities of Peace and 
Tranquillity and Expansive Views over and above the existing windfarm which, although more 
cluttered, is significantly less prominent.  Viewpoints at Porth Wen however, would still experience 
additional significant adverse effects. 
 
Views of the western array are greater than with the existing scheme and will continue to have 
significant adverse effects on the peace and tranquillity of the AONB. 
 
Against the current baseline, the removal of turbines 12 and 13 would reduce predicted effects from 
viewpoint 23 and views from the A5025. It would also reduce effects from viewpoint 4. It would further 
reduce visual clutter from elevated viewpoints (medium to long-distance) where we have previously 
noted that repowering would reduce visual effects.  
 
Aside from the temporary nature of the development, other mitigation is noted in the LVIA:  
 

 Slower turbine rotational speed;  
 Fewer turbines.  

 
While there are predicted positive effects on distant viewpoints as a result of the factors above, they 
do not reduce effects on the closer sensitive receptors such that they remain unchanged or reduced.  
In a similar manner, proposed planting in the vicinity of Viewpoint 12; footpath improvements in the 
AONB and signage in the Conservation Area would not reduce likely significant effects from any of 
the affected receptors.  
 
Cultural Heritage – Consideration against relevant planning policy and legislation 
 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 sets out a general duty to respects 
listed buildings in exercise of planning functions and states: 
 
“In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed building or 
its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of State shall have 
special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses”. 
 
This places an additional layer of consideration when evaluating the effects upon listed buildings. 
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan Policy D15 Preservation of Archaeological Monuments and Areas of 
Importance states: 
 
‘In considering proposals for development the planning authorities will ensure that:  
 
Scheduled ancient monuments and their settings will be preserved intact; and  
Areas of archaeological importance and unscheduled archaeological sites (including those important 
sites which are presently unknown but which may be discovered during the plan period) and their 
settings which are considered to be of sufficient regional, local or academic interest to merit 
preservation, will be preserved and planning permission will be refused.  
For archaeological sites not meriting preservation, planning consent will be withheld until provision 
has been made by the developer for an appropriate archaeological response before and during the 
development, either through written legal agreement or through the attachment of conditions to any 
planning consent.  
For archaeological sites of unknown importance and areas of high archaeological potential provision 
will be made for investigation before and during development.  
Schemes for development of visitor and educational facilities at and management of appropriate 

Page 42



archaeological sites will be encouraged provided they comply with the above.’ 
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan Policy D22 Proximity to Listed Buildings states: 
 
‘Any development or redevelopment in close proximity to a 'listed building' and having a bearing on its 
setting and character will be carefully controlled.’ 
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan Policy 26 Proximity to Conservation Areas states: 
 
‘All development in proximity to a designated conservation area having a bearing on the setting of the 
area will be carefully controlled so as to protect the character and appearance of that area.’ 
 
Ynys Môn Local Plan Policy 39 Archaeology states: 
 
‘The Council will use its planning powers to ensure that Scheduled Ancient Monuments and their 
settings are retained intact. Unsheduled archaeological sites and their settings of sufficient 
importance to merit preservation will also be protected.  Where proposals affect other unscheduled 
archaeological remains which do not merit preservation, provision will be made for an appropriate 
archaeological response.  Schemes for the development of visitor and educational facilities on 
suitable sites will be permitted provided that the archaeological site is not put at risk’. 
 
Ynys Môn Local Plan Policy 40 Conservation of Buildings states: 
 
“The character and appearance of all designated conservation areas will be protected from 
unsympathetic development. Enhancement of their characters will be achieved by carrying out 
improvements and permitting high quality new development”.   
 
Stopped Ynys Môn Unitary Development Plan Policy EN13 Conservation of Buildings states: 
 
“The character and appearance of all designated conservation areas will be protected from 
unsympathetic development. Enhancement of their characters will be achieved by carrying out 
improvements and permitting suitably designed new development.  
 
Buildings of special architectural and historic interest and their settings will be protected from 
unsympathetic development, alterations or demolition. Appropriate uses which help to preserve their 
character and fabric will be permitted”. 
 
Joint Local Development Plan (Submitted for Examination) Policy AT1: Conservation Areas, World 
Heritage Sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and Gardens states that: 
 
“Proposals within or affecting the setting and/ or significant views into and out of Conservation Areas, 
World 
Heritage Sites and Registered Historic Landscapes, Parks and Gardens shown on the Constraints 
Map must, 
where appropriate, have regard to: 
1. Adopted Conservation Area Character Appraisals, Conservation Area Plans and Delivery 
Strategies. 
2. World Heritage Site Management Plans. 
3. The Register of Landscape, Parks and Gardens of Special Historic Interest in Wales. 
4. Other detailed assessments adopted by the Local Planning Authority. 
Development proposals should be supported by a Heritage Impact Assessment, where appropriate”. 
 

Page 43



Planning Policy Wales (8th Edition) paragraph 6.5.9 states: 
 
“Where a development proposal affects a listed building or its setting, the primary material 
consideration is the statutory requirement to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the 
building, or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses”. 
 
Similar advice is contained within Circular 60/96 Planning and the Historic Environment: Archaeology 
and Circular 61/96 in relation to Historic Buildings and Conservations Areas.  
 
Conservation Area Assessment 
This defines a significant area of the town centre as an area within which development should be 
controlled to preserve the character of the area itself but also its setting.  The assessment identifies 
noteworthy outward and inward views that are important to the experience of the conservation area.  
 
LANDMAP classifies the area – as an area of gently rolling rural fields and farms inland from the 
coast, though the historic character is significantly altered by the wind-farm which now dominates the 
visual impact. 
 
A Cultural Heritage Assessment forms part of the Planning Statement and sets out the predicted 
impacts on scheduled ancient monuments and listed buildings within 1km of the application site. The 
assessment confirms that there are two scheduled ancient monuments; three Grade II listed buildings 
and the Cemaes Conservation Area within this distance.  
 
Further submissions were provided: 
 

 Cumulative Wireframes 16.09.15 for Viewpoints 14, 15, 18 and 21; 
 Response to Comments of Senior Planning & Conservation Officer dated 3 November 2015 

(Wessex Archaeology); 
 
Scheduled Ancient Monument Werthyr Standing Stone (AN150) is located 800m to the east of the 
nearest turbine.  Cadw’s response considered that impact is unlikely to be considered significant.  
Having special regard to the general duty to protect the setting of the stone under legislation, together 
with the view of the Council’s officers, it is concluded that this would result in minor harm to the setting 
of the stone.  
 
St Piero’s Church is a Grade II listed building situated to the south, approximately 1,100m from the 
closest turbine and has views of the existing Rhyd-y-Groes windfarm as well as the prominent Tai 
Hen turbine.  The environmental assessment concluded that there would be minor impact upon the 
church.  Substantiation of this conclusion has been sought and further assessment was undertaken 
by Wessex Archaeology supported by a wireframe visualisation to demonstrate the impact that the 
replacement of the existing scheme would have.  This shows that the proposed turbines would appear 
taller but would be fewer in number and would occupy a lesser arc of view. 
 
Having special regard to the general duty to protect the setting of the church under legislation, 
together with the view of the Council’s officers, it is concluded that this would result in minor harm to 
the setting of the church.     
 
Cemaes Conservation Area is located approximately 1 km to the west of the closest turbine.  The 
environmental assessment concluded that there would be negligible impact upon the Cemaes 
Conservation Area.  The cumulative wireframes confirmed the appearance of the turbines as taller, 
but fewer in number and less cluttered than the existing windfarm.  The Council does not disagree 
with this assessment. 
 

Page 44



The Wessex Archaeology assessment of the potential visibility of the development from within the 
Cemaes Conservation Area supported by photo wires showing the development from two important 
viewpoints looking out of the conservation area. The evidence presented demonstrated that the 
development is unlikely to be visible from these viewpoints largely as a result of intervening 
development. Having special regard to the protection of the setting of the Conservation Area, it is 
concluded that this would result in negligible harm to its setting. 
 
Cemaes Mill is a Grade II listed building situated at an elevated position to the south of Cemaes and 
is located approximately 1 km to the west of the closest turbine.  The applicants Cultural Heritage 
Assessment concludes that the development would result in negligible impacts to the setting of this 
building and substantiation of this conclusion has been sought.  Further assessment undertaken by 
Wessex Archaeology confirmed the earlier conclusions and the Council does not disagree with this 
assessment. Having special regard to the general duty to protect the setting of the church under 
legislation, together with the view of the Council’s officers, it is concluded that this would result in 
negligible harm to the setting of the mill. 
 
Cestyll is a Registered Historic Park and Garden close to Wylfa Power Station with very limited public 
opening times.  The garden is located in a cleft in the landscape and is self-contained with outward 
views only to the north-west and away from the development.  The applicants Cultural Heritage 
Assessment concludes there would be negligible harm to the garden and its setting.  The Council 
does not disagree with this assessment.   Having special regard to the general duty to protect the 
setting of the church under legislation, together with the view of the Council’s officers, it is concluded 
that this would result in negligible harm to the setting of the garden. 
 
The Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service is satisfied that a watching brief is appropriate and 
that no pre-determination archaeological assessment is required for this site.  
 
In relation to physical impacts it is concluded that no known cultural heritage assets will be directly 
impacted in terms of being damaged or destroyed by the proposed development.  
 
Residential Amenity – consideration against relevant planning policy and legislation 
 
The application is accompanied by an assessment of the effects of the proposal on visual amenity.  
 
Policy C7 of the Gwynedd Structure Plan supports renewable energy developments if the impact on 
the locality is acceptable. Policy 45 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan requires that renewable energy 
development does not have an unacceptable impact on “the standard of amenity enjoyed by the 
resident and tourist population”. Policy EP18 of the Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan 
includes the same criterion but requires it not to have a significant adverse impact. Policies 1 and 
GP1 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan and the Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan are also 
material in considering residential amenity. 
 
Paragraph 12.8.14 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 5) (November 2012) states that:  
 
“…developers will need to be sensitive to local circumstances, including siting in relation to local 
landform, proximity to dwellings and other planning considerations…” 
 
Annex D of TAN 8 lists factors which should typically be reviewed to identify “technically feasible 
areas” for the development of onshore wind energy schemes. At paragraph 3.4 is states “500m is 
currently considered a typical separation distance between a wind turbine and residential property to 
avoid unacceptable noise impacts, however when applied in a rigid manner it can lead to conservative 
results and so some flexibility is again advised” 

Page 45



 
The Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance Onshore Wind Energy (January 2013) stipulates 
that in relation to turbines of 20m to tip or more, none should be located within 500m of a residential 
or tourism property, or closer than 20 x tip height, whichever is the greater.  
In a letter dated 5th February 2013 in response to a third party concern regarding the now adopted 
SPG, The Welsh Government’s Chief Planning Officer confirmed: 
 
‘The Welsh Government’s planning policy and guidance does not specify a minimum distance 
between dwellings and wind turbines.  It is our view that a rigid minimum separation distance could 
unnecessarily hinder the development of renewable energy projects in Wales.  The Welsh 
Government opposed the Private Members’ Bill ‘Wind Turbines (Minimum Distances from Residential 
Premises) Bill introduced into the House of Lords by Lord Reay, which sought to make provision for a 
minimum distance between wind turbines and residential premises according to the size of the wind 
turbine, which has subsequently failed to make it into statute.  We consider that the issue of 
separation distances between residential premises and wind turbines is best determined locally on a 
case-by-case basis, taking on board locally sensitive issues such as topography and cumulative 
impacts, when decisions on planning applications are taken’. 
 
The scheme as submitted is not located within 500m of any property. The 500m / 20xtip height buffer 
requirement has been dismissed as ‘arbitrary and mechanistic’ at appeal as it fails to take into 
account the particular circumstances prevailing at different sites.  The assessment here is based on 
the anticipated effects of the scheme on individual properties and does not apply the SPG buffer as a 
matter of course. 
 
Officers have also considered decisions made by Planning Inspectors in relation to residential visual 
amenity. Such an analysis indicates that a common threshold criterion applied by Inspectors for 
assessing visual residential amenity is where the change in the view would affect the fundamental 
living conditions. Various terms are used to describe this threshold, e.g. ‘overbearing’, ‘overwhelming’, 
‘overpowering’ or ‘oppressive’. Inspector Lavender deliberating on the Langdon Inquiry in Devon 
specified the consideration as follows: 
 
“When turbines are present in such number, size and proximity that they represent an unpleasantly 
overwhelming and unavoidable presence in main views from a house or garden, there is every 
likelihood that the property concerned would come to be widely regarded as an unattractive and thus 
unsatisfactory (but not necessarily uninhabitable) place in which to live. It is not in the public interest 
to create such living conditions where they did not exist before.” 
 
The closest properties without a financial interest to the proposed turbine are: 
 

Property Approximate Distance from Proposal 
 

Houses to North West of A5025 Cemaes (North to South) 610 to 770 
Gadlys Hotel 640 
Pilwrn 675 
Tregynrig Bach 710 
Tyn y Gors 725 
Criw 740 
Rhos-isaf 740 
Bryn Llwyd 800 
Carrog 820 
Pen y Brtn 840 
Shop y Goeden 840 

Page 46



Hafodllin Bach 840 
Hafodllin Fawr 875 
Betwys 940 
Tai Hen 1000 
Pen Parc Bach 1000 

 
In assessing the residential impacts however, it is considered that the proposal would not be 
overbearing or overwhelming at any property such that its use was restricted or their general 
enjoyment impinged upon to such an extent as to make them unbearable.  Although some properties 
will have direct views of the proposed development which would be significant and prominent, the 
width of the array is significantly less and the overall impact on the everyday enjoyment of those 
dwellings and their curtilages is not considered such as to warrant refusal of planning permission.  
 
Annex C of Planning Policy Wales provides advice on Shadow Flicker and Reflected light and states 
that flicker is only found to have the potential for a significant effect upon occupiers of properties up to 
10 rotor diameters of a turbine and within 130 degrees either side of north at these latitudes in the UK. 
Whilst this suggests that no properties will be affected significantly by the development (all are at 
distances greater than 10 rotor diameters), filmed evidence has been presented by the residents of 
Tyn-y-Gors which suggests that flicker is presently experienced, although it is not possible to confirm, 
independently that this is ‘significant’.  Without prejudice, and to address this issue, the applicant has 
agreed to a planning condition requiring an amelioration protocol that will shut down turbines at times 
when the prevailing weather conditions are likely to significantly effect the properties listed in the table 
above.  The existing Rhyd-y-Groes windfarm has no such protocol in place. 
 
Annex C goes on to state turbines can also cause flashes of reflected light, which can be visible for 
some distances. The guidance states that reflected light can be mitigated by the choice of blade 
colour and a planning condition is applied to mitigate these potential impacts. 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 
The effect of the development on tourism is a material consideration. The Isle of Anglesey Council 
commissioned research on “The Impact of Wind Turbines on Tourism” which has been weighted in 
making the recommendation below. 
 
In terms of Health and Safety the proposals are not situated in proximity to any roads or buildings 
having regard to advice in Annex C, paragraphs 2.19 and 2.20 of “TAN 8”. 
 
The turbine is proposed to be delivered to site using the existing accesses via the A5025 from 
Holyhead Port.  Two cranes will be used to hoist the turbine into place and other construction traffic 
will comprise smaller vehicles, excavation vehicles and concrete deliveries.  The Highway Authority 
raises no concerns and requests that the developer agrees traffic management plan with them whilst 
the Welsh Government Transport arm confirms that it does not wish to issue a direction in relation to 
the proposals and have removed their objection.  
 
Natural Resources Wales and the Council’s ecologist are content that the scheme can be 
accommodated in terms of ecology impacts subject to the offered habitat management plan and that 
Turbine 4 is sited no nearer to the hedgerow immediately to the north to be controlled through  micro-
siting conditions.  NRW is of the opinion that the scheme as proposed represents an improvement 
over the existing wind farm given the greater separation distances from linear features used by bats.  
 
The Environmental Health Section is satisfied that the scheme can be accommodated in terms of 
noise impacts subject to standard conditions in accordance with ETSU guidance. 

Page 47



 
 
 7. Conclusion  
 
There is a strong presumption in favour of the development of renewable energy but subject to 
environmental considerations on a site basis.  TAN8 encourages the repowering of existing windfarms 
provided that the environmental and landscape impacts are acceptable. 
 
The amendments to the Onshore Wind Energy SPG in respect of separation distances, a 2km buffer 
to the AONB, height restrictions, cumulative impact on the community and a decommissioning bond 
can be attributed very limited weight. 
 
The key consideration in the context of this scheme can be distilled into a balancing exercise between 
the benefits of renewable energy generation and the heritage and landscape effects that it would 
create. 
 
Having special regard to the protection heritage assets and the Council’s obligations under section 66 
of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 together with the relevant policy 
and informed by the consultation response provided by the Council’s Senior Planning and 
Conservation Officer  it is concluded that the development would result in minor harm to the setting of 
St Piero’s Church and negligible harm to the Cemaes Conservation Area, Cemaes Mill and Cestyll 
Garden.  With regard to archaeology, the consultation advice received from the Gwynedd 
Archaeological Planning Service is that a watching brief (secured via a planning condition) is 
appropriate and that no pre-determination archaeological assessment is required for this site. 
  
Given that the effects upon heritage assets would be less than substantial and having special regard 
to the desirability of preserving them and their settings, it is concluded that given national and local 
policy support for renewable energy that the application is acceptable on heritage grounds. 
 
Having regard to the policy protection afforded to the AONB it must be accepted that in this location, 
the area is already affected indirectly by the existing Rhyd-y-Groes wind farm as well as other, 
individual wind turbines.  In the context of the proposed scheme, the removal of turbines 12 and 13 
from that originally submitted would reduce predicted effects from viewpoint 23 and views from the 
A5025. It would also reduce effects from viewpoint 4. It would further reduce visual clutter from 
elevated viewpoints (medium to long-distance) where it has been previously noted that repowering 
would reduce visual effects. However, Viewpoint 5 Porth Wen Trwynbychan and Viewpoint 6 Porth 
Wen Graig Wen would still experience additional significant adverse effects.  Taking the above into 
account, and the fact that Natural Resources Wales has removed its objection to the application it is 
considered that effects upon the AONB would not be so significant as to warrant refusal particularly 
when the benefits of renewable energy are weighed in the balance along with the addition 
considerations referenced below. 
 
Current policies and guidance supporting windfarm repowering, weigh against the treatment of wind 
farms as ‘temporary’.  However, in this case the reversibility of effects is given significant weight as if 
restricted to a 25 year period; the windfarm’s life would be the subject of planning control in contrast 
to the existing windfarm for which no time-limited consent was applied.  Similarly conditions to ensure 
the appropriate decommissioning of the proposed windfarm can be applied and they can also be 
extended to include for the decommissioning of the existing wind farm, for which no condition applies 
at present.  If further repowering of this site were to be proposed – subject to conditions being applied 
– it would be assessed on the basis of it being a greenfield site, as decommissioned.   
 
 8. Recommendation 

Page 48



 
Permit subject to the following conditions: 
 
(01) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 5 years from 
the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 
 
(02) The development hereby permitted shall accord to the revised scheme set out in the 
‘Rhyd-y-Groes Wind Farm Scheme Amendment Statement’ submitted by the applicant in June 
2016 and the amended layout (070616_11t_A) at Appendix 1 of the ‘Rhyd-y-Groes Wind Farm 
Scheme Amendment Statement’, or as otherwise agreed by the Council in consultation with 
statutory consultees 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to define the permission having regard to the assessed 
impact of the development. 
 
(03) The permission hereby granted shall endure for a period of 25 years from the date when 
electricity is first exported from any wind turbine within the Rhyd-y-Groes Repowering wind 
farm hereby consented to the electricity grid network (‘First Export Date’). Written confirmation 
of the First Export date shall be notified in writing by the developer to the Local Planning 
Authority within six months of the First Export Date. 
 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance upon cessation of the development. 
 
(04) No Turbine shall be erected associated with this permission, until a decommissioning and 
site restoration scheme for the existing windfarm shall be submitted for the written approval of 
the Local Planning Authority. Such a scheme will include for 
a) the turbine bases and tracks of the wind farm will be left to grass over; 
b) confirmation of the management and indicative timing of works; 
c) a traffic management plan to fully address highway issues for abnormal loads during the 
period of the decommissioning works; and 
d) other works of restoration and aftercare, agreed between the Local Planning Authority and 
developer to be reasonable and necessary. 
The approved decommissioning scheme shall be implemented and completed within 
18months of the First Export Date of the Rhyd-y-Groes Repowering wind farm hereby 
approved. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and to define the permission having regard to 
the assessed impact of the development. 
 
(05) Not later than 12 months before the expiry date of the permission or unless otherwise  
agreed with the local planning authority , a decommissioning and site restoration scheme 
shall be submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority. Such a scheme will 
include for 
the removal of  one metre of the turbine bases below ground level, of the wind farm and 
reinstatement of the land; 
confirmation of the management and indicative timing of works; 
a traffic management plan to fully address highway issues for abnormal loads during the 
period of the decommissioning works; and 
other works of restoration and aftercare, agreed between the Local Planning Authority and 

Page 49



developer to be reasonable and necessary. 
 
The approved decommissioning schemes shall be implemented and completed within 12 
months of the expiry date of this permission, unless otherwise agreed with by the Local 
Planning Authority 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and to define the permission having regard to 
the assessed impact of the development. 
 
(06) If any wind turbine fails to produce electricity to the grid for a continuous period of 12 
months the Local Planning Authority shall be notified in writing and, if so instructed by the 
Local Planning Authority, the wind turbine and its associated ancillary equipment shall be 
removed from the site, plus one metre of the turbine base below ground level within a period 
of 6 months from the end of that 12 month period unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality 
 
(07) All of the blades of the turbines hereby permitted shall rotate in a clockwise direction.  
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality 
 
(08) The maximum height of the tip of the wind turbines shall not exceed those specified in the 
Table on page 2 of the ‘Rhyd-y-Groes Wind Farm Scheme Amendment Statement’ submitted 
by the applicant in June 2016.  These heights will be measured from natural ground conditions 
immediately adjacent to the turbine base. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and to define the permission having regard to 
the assessed impact of the development. 
 
(09) No turbine shall be erected until a scheme regarding the attachment of aviation lighting to 
the wind turbine approved under this permission has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in full thereafter in 
accordance with the approved details.  
 
Reason: In the interests of aviation safety and the amenities of the locality 
 
(10) No turbine shall be erected until details of the external finish of the turbines hereby 
permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  Details of any 
logos, symbols or signs to be displayed on the turbines hereby permitted shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority before they are displayed on a 
turbine. 
 
Reason: In the interests of good design 
 
(11) All cabling within the site shall be installed underground except where it exits the 
substation.  
 
Reason: In the interests of safety and the amenities of the locality 
 
(12) With the exception of Turbine 4, all turbines shall be sited in accordance with the 

Page 50



locations shown on the approved layout drawing (Ref: 200518_M_016D dated 13th June 2016), 
subject to a tolerance of 30m in any direction    
 
Turbine 4 shall not be micro-sited at any position west  of the location specified in the Table 
on page 2 of the ‘Rhyd-y-Groes Wind Farm Scheme Amendment Statement’ submitted by the 
applicant in June 2016.   
 
Any consequential realignment of the associated infrastructure is also permitted. A plan 
showing the position of the turbines and tracks established on the site shall be submitted to 
the Local Planning Authority within six months of the First Export Date. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and to define the permission having regard to 
the assessed impact of the development upon a wildlife corridor. 
 
(13) Notwithstanding the approved plans, the construction of the extension to the existing sub-
station and the construction of the new sub-station shall not commence until details of the 
exact siting, dimensions, appearance and external finishes of the sub-station building, the 
fencing and surface finish of the compound have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality 
 
(14) A professionally qualified and independent archaeologist shall be present during the 
undertaking of any ground works in the development area, so that an archaeological watching 
brief can be carried out. The archaeological watching brief shall be undertaken to the 
standards laid down by the Institute for Archaeologists. The Local Planning Authority will be 
informed in writing at least two weeks prior to the commencement of the development of the 
name of the archaeologist. 
 
Reason: To define the permission having regard to the assessed impact of the development. 
 
(15) No turbine shall be erected until a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP 
shall provide full details of the works undertaken including indicative construction timescale, 
details of the means of avoidance and mitigation of  impacts on the species and habitats 
recorded within the development site and pollution prevention measures to be implemented 
during the site preparation and construction phases of the development. The CEMP shall be 
implemented as approved. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality 
 
(16) No turbine shall be erected   until such time as a scheme for: 1) disposal of any surface 
water drainage; 2) disposal of any foul water drainage; 3) monitoring of any licensed and 
private groundwater abstractions; has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of avoiding environmental pollution. 
 
(17) Prior to the first turbine excavation on site the requirement for a Hydrogeological Impact 
Appraisal shall be scoped and agreed with the Local Planning Authority. A Hydrogeological 
Impact Appraisal shall be undertaken, submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 

Page 51



Authority if so required. It shall be implemented as part of the approved CEMP. 
 
Reason: In the interests of avoiding environmental pollution. 
 
(18) No turbine shall be erected, including any demolition of structures relating to the existing 
wind farm, until a Construction Method Statement have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved method statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The statement shall provide for: a) the means of access 
for construction traffic; b) the loading and unloading of plant and materials; c) the storage of 
plant and materials used in constructing the development; d) wheel washing facilities; e) 
measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; f) a scheme for 
recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction works; g) details of 
the construction compound for the proposed development; h) details of any storage facilities 
for oils; fuels or chemicals. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
details approved. 
 
Reason: In the interests of safety, the amenities of the locality and avoiding environmental pollution. 
 
(19) No turbine shall be erected, including for the implementation of temporary highway works, 
until a construction traffic management plan has been submitted to and agreed by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The construction of the wind farm shall take place in accordance with the 
approved plan.  
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
(20) The vision splays to any existing or amended accesses shall be constructed/laid out and 
retained as agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first turbine erection 
and maintained throughout the duration of the construction works.  No structure, erection or 
planting exceeding 0.9 metres in height above adjacent carriageway level shall be placed 
within the vision splay unless agreed between the Local Planning Authority and the developer. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
(21) Any gates erected across the proposed accesses shall be set back not less than 5m from 
the nearside edge of the carriageway. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
(22) No turbine shall be erected until a written protocol relating to the assessment and 
mitigation of shadow flicker at any potentially affected dwelling has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The protocol shall include the 
identification of relevant dwellings and potential measures to be employed as mitigation in 
response to any established occurrence of shadow flicker. In the event of a complaint to the 
Local Planning Authority which the authority considers to be valid and made by the owner or 
occupier of a dwelling which lawfully exists or had planning permission at the date of this 
permission, the turbines shall operate in accordance an agreed protocol. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupants of nearby dwellings. 
 
(23) Construction work on the site shall be confined to the hours of 0700 - 1900hrs on Monday 
to Friday inclusive, 0700 - 1300hrs on Saturday with no working on a Sunday or national public 
holiday, unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority; save for the 

Page 52



delivery of abnormal loads which may be scheduled following police advice outside these 
hours and the pouring of concrete, where reasonable endeavours have been used to plan such 
works. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupants of nearby dwellings. 
 
(24) The development shall not commence until the following has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
a) The maximum extension height of any construction equipment. 
b) The latitude and longitude of every turbine upon finalisation taking account of unforeseen 
ground conditions or archaeological constraints. 
The development shall thereafter be undertaken strictly in accord with the details approved 
under the provisions of this condition.  
 
Reason: To ensure that military aircraft avoid the area and avoid the danger of collision. 
 
(25) No turbine shall be erected until the submitted Draft Habitat Management and 
Enhancement Plan has been agreed with the Local Planning Authority and NRW.  The finalised 
plan will confirm to the aims and objectives of the Draft Plan as submitted.  The measures set 
out in the Habitat Management and Enhancement Plan shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 
 
Reason: To define the permission having regard to the assessed impact of the development. 
 
(26) No turbine shall be erected until a scheme to secure the investigation and alleviation of 
any electro-magnetic interference to TV and radio reception and satellite broadband 
connections caused by the operation of turbines has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall provide for a pre-construction 
baseline survey and for the investigation by a qualified independent engineer of any complaint 
or interference with television or radio reception, or broadband connection at a dwelling 
(defined for the purposes of this condition as a building within Use Class C3 of the of the 
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, as amended) which the authority 
considers to be valid which lawfully exists or had planning permission at the date of this 
permission where such a complaint is notified to the wind farm operator by the Local Planning 
Authority within 12 months of the First Export Date. Where the impairment is determined by 
the qualified independent engineer to be attributable to the wind farm, mitigation works which 
shall have been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved scheme.  
 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupants of nearby dwellings 
 
(27) Within 4 weeks from receipt of a written request from the Local Planning Authority [LPA], 
following investigation and upholding of an amplitude modulation (AM) complaint to it from 
the occupant of a dwelling which lawfully exists or has planning permission at the date of this 
consent, the wind farm operator shall submit a scheme for the assessment and regulation of 
AM to the LPA for its written approval. The scheme shall be in general accordance with: 
a) Any guidance endorsed in National Guidance at that time, or in the absence of endorsed 
guidance, 
b) Suitable published methodology endorsed as good practice by the Institute of Acoustics; or 
in the absence of such published methodology, The methodology published by Renewable UK 
on the 16th December 2013; and 
c) implemented within 3 months of the written request of the LPA unless otherwise extended 

Page 53



in writing by it.” 
 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupants of nearby dwellings 
 
(28) The rating level of noise immissions from the combined effects of the wind turbines 
(including the application of any tonal penalty) when determined in accordance with the 
attached Guidance Notes (to this condition), shall not exceed the values for the relevant 
integer wind speed set out in, or derived from, the tables attached to these conditions at any 
dwelling which is lawfully existing or has planning permission at the date of this permission 
and:  
 
a) The wind farm operator shall continuously log power production, wind speed and wind 
direction, all in accordance with Guidance Note 1(d). These data shall be retained for a period 
of not less than 24 months. The wind farm operator shall provide this information in the format 
set out in Guidance Note 1(e) to the Local Planning Authority on its request, within 14 days of 
receipt in writing of such a request.  
b) Within 21 days from receipt of a written request from the Local Planning Authority following 
a complaint to it from an occupant of a dwelling alleging noise disturbance at that dwelling 
upon investigation and upholding of the complaint from the Local Planning Authority, the wind 
farm operator shall, at its expense, employ a consultant approved by the Local Planning 
Authority to assess the level of noise immissions from the wind farm at the complainant’s 
property in accordance with the procedures described in the attached Guidance Notes. The 
written request from the Local Planning Authority shall set out at least the date, time and 
location that the complaint relates to and any identified atmospheric conditions, including 
wind direction, and include a statement as to whether, in the opinion of the Local Planning 
Authority, the noise giving rise to the complaint contains or is likely to contain a tonal 
component.  
c) The assessment of the rating level of noise immissions shall be undertaken in accordance 
with an assessment protocol that shall previously have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The protocol shall include the proposed measurement 
location identified in accordance with the Guidance Notes where measurements for 
compliance checking purposes shall be undertaken, whether noise giving rise to the complaint 
contains or is likely to contain a tonal component, and also the range of meteorological and 
operational conditions (which shall include the range of wind speeds, wind directions, power 
generation and times of day) to determine the assessment of rating level of noise immissions. 
The proposed range of conditions shall be those which prevailed during times when the 
complainant alleges there was disturbance due to noise, having regard to the written request 
of the Local Planning Authority under paragraph (b), and such others as the independent 
consultant considers likely to result in a breach of the noise limits.  
d) Where a dwelling to which a complaint is related is not listed in the tables attached to these 
conditions, the wind farm operator shall submit to the Local Planning Authority for written 
approval proposed noise limits selected from those listed in the Tables to be adopted at the 
complainant’s dwelling for compliance checking purposes. The proposed noise limits are to 
be those limits selected from the Tables specified for a listed location which the independent 
consultant considers as being likely to experience the most similar background noise 
environment to that experienced at the complainant’s dwelling. The rating level of noise 
immissions resulting from the combined effects of the wind turbines when determined in 
accordance with the attached Guidance Notes shall not exceed the noise limits approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority for the complainant’s dwelling.  
e) The wind farm operator shall provide to the Local Planning Authority the independent 
consultant’s assessment of the rating level of noise immissions undertaken in accordance 
with the Guidance Notes within 2 months of the date of the written request of the Local 

Page 54



Planning Authority for compliance measurements to be made under paragraph (b), unless the 
time limit is extended in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The assessment shall include 
all data collected for the purposes of undertaking the compliance measurements, such data to 
be provided in the format set out in Guidance Note 1(e) of the Guidance Notes. The 
instrumentation used to undertake the measurements shall be calibrated in accordance with 
Guidance Note 1(a) and certificates of calibration shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority with the independent consultant’s assessment of the rating level of noise 
immissions.  
f) Where a further assessment of the rating level of noise immissions from the wind farm is 
required pursuant to Guidance Note 4(c), the wind farm operator shall submit a copy of the 
further assessment within 21 days of submission of the independent consultant’s assessment 
pursuant to paragraph (c) above unless the time limit has been extended in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  
 
Table 1 –  Noise limits expressed in dB LA90,10 minute as a function of the standardised wind 
speed (m/s) at 10 metre height as determined within the site averaged over 10 minute periods 
 

Standardised Wind Speed at 10m agl: m.s-1 

 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

Betws 35 35 38 38 38 38.9 40.5 41.3 41.3 41.3 

Bryn Llwyd 35 35 38 38 38 38.2 42.4 42.9 42.9 42.9 

Buarth y Foel 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 

Caermynach 35 35 38 38 38 38 38.1 40.3 41.4 41.4 

Carrog 35 35 38 38 38 38 38.1 40.3 40.5 40.5 

Cemaes 35.7 36.7 38 38 38.7 39.6 41 42.8 42.8 42.8 

Cemaes Fawr 
Farm 

45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45.2 

Criw 35 35 38 38 38 38 38.1 40.3 42.2 42.2 

Fron-Heulog 35 35 38 38 38 38.9 40.4 41.1 41.1 41.1 

Gadlys Hotel 35 35 38 38 38 38.9 42 42.6 42.6 42.6 

Hafodllin Bach 35 35 35.2 37.8 40.4 43 43.1 43.5 43.5 43.5 

Hafodllin Fawr 35 35 35.2 37.8 40.4 43 43.1 43.5 43.5 43.5 

Nant-y Fran 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45.5 

Neuadd 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 

Pen Dalar 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 

Pen Parc Bach 35 35 38 38 38 38.2 42.4 42.7 42.7 42.7 

Pen Parc Mawr 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 

Page 55



Penybryn 35 35 38 38 38 38 38.1 40.1 40.1 40.1 

Pilwrn 35 35 38 38 38 38.3 40.8 43.3 43.3 43.3 

Rhos-isaf 35 35 38 38 38 38.9 42 42.5 42.5 42.5 

Rhyd-y-groes 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 

Shop y goeden 35 35 35 35 36 38 39 41 42 42 

Tai Hen 35 35 38 38 38 38 38.1 39.8 39.8 39.8 

Tregynrig Bach 35 35 38 38 38 38.9 42 43.6 43.7 43.7 

Tregynrig Fawr 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 46.1 46.9 

Tŷ Newydd 35 35 38 38 38 38 41.2 42.8 42.8 42.8 

Tyn-y-gors 35 35 35 35 36 38 39 41 42 42.9 

Werthyr 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 46.5 47.1 47.1 

 

 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupants of nearby dwellings. 
 
Guidance Notes for Noise Conditions  
 
These notes are to be read with and form part of the noise condition. They further explain the 
condition and specify the methods to be employed in the assessment of complaints about noise 
immissions from the wind farm. The rating level at each integer wind speed is the arithmetic sum of 
the wind farm noise level as determined from the best-fit curve described in Guidance Note 2 of these 
Guidance Notes and any tonal penalty applied in accordance with Guidance Note 3. Reference to 
ETSU-R-97 refers to the publication entitled “The Assessment and Rating of Noise from Wind Farms” 
(1997) published by the Energy Technology Support Unit (ETSU) for the Department of Trade and 
Industry (DTI).  
 
Guidance Note 1  
(a) Values of the LA90,10 minute  noise statistic should be measured at the complainant’s property, using a 
sound level meter of EN 60651/BS EN 60804 Type 1, or BS EN 61672 Class 1 quality (or the 
equivalent UK adopted standard in force at the time of the measurements) set to measure using the 
fast time weighted response as specified in BS EN 60651/BS EN 60804 or BS EN 61672-1 (or the 
equivalent UK adopted standard in force at the time of the measurements). This should be calibrated 
in accordance with the procedure specified in BS 4142: 2014 (or the equivalent UK adopted standard 
in force at the time of the measurements). Measurements shall be undertaken in such a manner to 
enable a tonal penalty to be applied in accordance with Guidance Note 3.  
 
(b) The microphone should be mounted at 1.2 – 1.5 metres above ground level, fitted with a two-layer 
windshield or suitable equivalent approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and placed 
outside the complainant’s dwelling. Measurements should be made in “free field” conditions. To 
achieve this, the microphone should be placed at least 3.5 metres away from the building facade or 
any reflecting surface except the ground at the approved measurement location. In the event that the 
consent of the complainant for access to his or her property to undertake compliance measurements 
is withheld, the wind farm operator shall submit for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority 
details of the proposed alternative representative measurement location prior to the commencement 
of measurements and the measurements shall be undertaken at the approved alternative 

Page 56



representative measurement location.  
 
(c) The LA90,10 minute  minute measurements should be synchronised with measurements of the 10-
minute arithmetic mean wind and operational data logged in accordance with Guidance Note 1(d), 
including the power generation data from the turbine control systems of the wind farm.  
 
(d) To enable compliance with the conditions to be evaluated, the wind farm operator shall 
continuously log arithmetic mean wind speed in metres per second and wind direction in degrees from 
north at hub height for each turbine and arithmetic mean power generated by each turbine, all in 
successive 10-minute periods. Unless an alternative procedure is previously agreed in writing with the 
Planning Authority, this hub height wind speed, averaged across all operating wind turbines, shall be 
used as the basis for the analysis. All 10 minute arithmetic average mean wind speed data measured 
at hub height shall be ‘standardised’ to a reference height of 10 metres as described in ETSU-R-97 at 
page 120 using a reference roughness length of 0.05 metres . It is this standardised 10 metre height 
wind speed data, which is correlated with the noise measurements determined as valid in accordance 
with Guidance Note 2, such correlation to be undertaken in the manner described in Guidance Note 2. 
All 10-minute periods shall commence on the hour and in 10- minute increments thereafter.  
 
(e) Data provided to the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the noise condition shall be 
provided in comma separated values in electronic format.  
 
(f) A data logging rain gauge shall be installed in the course of the assessment of the levels of noise 
immissions. The gauge shall record over successive 10-minute periods synchronised with the periods 
of data recorded in accordance with Note 1(d).  
 
Guidance Note 2  
(a) The noise measurements shall be made so as to provide not less than 20 valid data points as 
defined in Guidance Note 2 (b)  
 
(b) Valid data points are those measured in the conditions specified in the agreed written protocol 
under paragraph (c) of the noise condition, but excluding any periods of rainfall measured in the 
vicinity of the sound level meter. Rainfall shall be assessed by use of a rain gauge that shall log the 
occurrence of rainfall in each 10 minute period concurrent with the measurement periods set out in 
Guidance Note 1. In specifying such conditions the Local Planning Authority shall have regard to 
those conditions which prevailed during times when the complainant alleges there was disturbance 
due to noise or which are considered likely to result in a breach of the limits.  
 
(c) For those data points considered valid in accordance with Guidance Note 2(b), values of the LA90,10 

minute  noise measurements and corresponding values of the 10- minute wind speed, as derived from 
the standardised ten metre height wind speed averaged across all operating wind turbines using the 
procedure specified in Guidance Note 1(d), shall be plotted on an XY chart with noise level on the Y-
axis and the standardised mean wind speed on the X-axis. A least squares, “best fit” curve of an order 
deemed appropriate by the independent consultant (but which may not be higher than a fourth order) 
should be fitted to the data points and define the wind farm noise level at each integer speed.  
 
Guidance Note 3  
(a) Where, in accordance with the approved assessment protocol under paragraph (c) of the noise 
condition, noise immissions at the location or locations where compliance measurements are being 
undertaken contain or are likely to contain a tonal component, a tonal penalty is to be calculated and 
applied using the following rating procedure.  
 
(b) For each 10 minute interval for which LA90,10 minute data have been determined as valid in 

Page 57



accordance with Guidance Note 2 a tonal assessment shall be performed on noise immissions during 
2 minutes of each 10 minute period. The 2 minute periods should be spaced at 10 minute intervals 
provided that uninterrupted uncorrupted data are available (“the standard procedure”). Where 
uncorrupted data are not available, the first available uninterrupted clean 2 minute period out of the 
affected overall 10 minute period shall be selected. Any such deviations from the standard procedure, 
as described in Section 2.1 on pages 104-109 of ETSU-R-97, shall be reported.  
 
(c) For each of the 2 minute samples the tone level above or below audibility shall be calculated by 
comparison with the audibility criterion given in Section 2.1 on pages 104109 of ETSU-R-97.  
 
(d) The tone level above audibility shall be plotted against wind speed for each of the 2 minute 
samples. Samples for which the tones were below the audibility criterion or no tone was identified, a 
value of zero audibility shall be used.  
 
(e) A least squares “best fit” linear regression line shall then be performed to establish the average 
tone level above audibility for each integer wind speed derived from the value of the “best fit” line at 
each integer wind speed. If there is no apparent trend with wind speed then a simple arithmetic mean 
shall be used. This process shall be repeated for each integer wind speed for which there is an 
assessment of overall levels in Guidance Note 2.  
 
(f) The tonal penalty is derived from the margin above audibility of the tone according to the figure 
below. 
 
 

Guidance Note 4  

(a) If a tonal penalty is to be applied in accordance with Guidance Note 3 the rating level of the turbine 
noise at each wind speed is the arithmetic sum of the measured noise level as determined from the 
best fit curve described in Guidance Note 2 and the penalty for tonal noise as derived in accordance 
with Guidance Note 3 at each integer wind speed within the range specified by the Local Planning 
Authority in its written protocol under paragraph (c) of the noise condition.  

(b) If no tonal penalty is to be applied then the rating level of the turbine noise at each wind speed is 
equal to the measured noise level as determined from the best fit curve described in Guidance Note 
2.  

(c) In the event that the rating level is above the limit(s) set out in the Tables attached to the noise 

Page 58



conditions or the noise limits for a complainant’s dwelling approved in accordance with paragraph (d) 
of the noise condition, the independent consultant shall undertake a further assessment of the rating 
level to correct for background noise so that the rating level relates to wind turbine noise immission 
only.  

(d) The wind farm operator shall ensure that all the wind turbines in the development are turned off for 
such period as the independent consultant requires to undertake the further assessment. The further 
assessment shall be undertaken in accordance with the following steps:  

(e). Repeating the steps in Guidance Note 2, with the wind farm switched off, and determining the 
background noise (L3) at each integer wind speed within the range requested by the Local Planning 
Authority in its written request under paragraph (b) and the approved protocol under paragraph (c) of 
the noise condition.  

(f) The wind farm noise (L1) at this speed shall then be calculated as follows where L2 is the 
measured level with turbines running but without the addition of any tonal penalty: 

 

 

g) The rating level shall be re-calculated by adding arithmetically the tonal penalty (if any is applied in 
accordance with Note 3) to the derived wind farm noise L1 at that integer wind speed.  

(h) If the rating level after adjustment for background noise contribution and adjustment for tonal 
penalty (if required in accordance with note 3 above) at any integer wind speed lies at or below the 
values set out in the Tables attached to the conditions or at or below the noise limits approved by the 
Local Planning Authority for a complainant’s dwelling in accordance with paragraph (d) of the noise 
condition then no further action is necessary. If the rating level at any integer wind speed exceeds the 
values set out in the Tables attached to the conditions or the noise limits approved by the Local 
Planning Authority for a complainant’s dwelling in accordance with paragraph (d) of the noise 
condition then the development fails to comply with the conditions. 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 59



7.3 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications   
   

Rhif y Cais:     28C257A     Application Number 
 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 
 

Ms Menna Ball & Mr Ian Ball 
 

Cais amlinellol ar gyfer codi annedd yn cynnwys manylion llawn am yr fynedfa i gerbydau ar 
dir ger / Outline application for the erection of a dwelling together with full details of the 

vehicular access on land adjacent to  
   

Bryn Maelog, Llanfaelog 
   
 

 
 
 
 

Page 60



 
Planning Committee: 27/07/2016 
 
Report of Head of Regulation and Economic  Development Service (NJ) 
 
 Recommendation:   
 
Refuse. 
 
 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  
 
Councillor Richard Dew has called in the application for Committee determination. 
 
At its meeting held on 6th July 2016 the Committee resolved to approve the application for the 
following reasons: 
 
The application complies with Policy 50; 
The proposal is an infill application on a brownfield site; 
The proposal does not impact upon the amenities of adjoining occupiers; 
The proposal will improve the appearance and amenities of the locality. 
 
Response to the Reasons for Approval: 
 
Policy 50: Llanfaelog is a Listed Settlement under Policy 50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan. Policy 50 
allows the development of single plots within or on the edge of existing villages and hamlets and 
requires that the proposal is within or forms a reasonable minor extension to the existing developed 
part of the settlement and would not constitute an undesirable intrusion into the landscape or harm 
the character and amenities of the locality.   
 
The builder’s yard is located outside the defined village boundary under the Stopped UDP.  Although 
a handful of dwellings cluster around the staggered crossroads near St Maelog’s Church, there is a 
distinct gap before reaching the bungalows which the builder’s yard adjoins.  It is not considered that 
the site forms an infill site or a reasonable minor extension to the existing developed part of the 
settlement. The development of a dwelling here would lead to pressure to develop the remaining part 
of the site to the east of the plot as well as to infill development back towards St Maelog’s Church to 
the west. 
 
Infill on Previously Developed Land: Paragraph 4.9 of Planning Policy Wales advances a 
preference for previously developed land and goes on to state: 
 
“4.9.1 Previously developed (or brownfield) land (see Figure 4.4) should, wherever possible, be used 
in preference to greenfield sites, particularly those of high agricultural or ecological value. The Welsh 
Government recognises that not all previously developed land is suitable for development. This may 
be, for example, because of its location, the presence of protected species or valuable habitats or 
industrial heritage, or because it is highly contaminated. For sites like these it may be appropriate to 
secure remediation for nature conservation, amenity value or to reduce risks to human health.  
 
4.9.2 Many previously developed sites in built-up areas may be considered suitable for development 
because their re-use will promote sustainability objectives. This includes sites:  
 
* in and around existing settlements where there is vacant or under-used land, commercial property or 
housing”.  

Page 61



 
The site is currently in active use as a builder’s yard.  Although the principle of re-use is acceptable to 
support sustainability principles, planning policy recognises that not all previously developed sites are 
suitable for development. The application site is considered unsuitable for housing because of its 
physical remoteness from the village (the proposal would develop a remote site rather than fill a small 
gap between existing development) and because its development would lead to pressure for the 
remaining part of the site to be similarly developed as well as intervening land between the site and 
the village. Cumulatively, such development would erode the rural character of the area. 
 
Amenity Impacts: The sits is adjoined to the west by an existing dwelling. Subject to suitable design 
and the placement of windows it is not considered that the development of the site as proposed would 
lead to unacceptable overlooking or loss of privacy.  The removal of a commercial use may give rise 
to a general improvement in amenity.  
 
 2. Conclusion  
 
The principle of residential development is unacceptable as the development conflicts with Policy 50 
of the Ynys Mon Local Plan. The development of the site would lead to pressure for additional 
housing development in the vicinity.  The brownfield nature of the site is not sufficient of itself to 
overcome the policy objection. 
 
 3. Recommendation 
 
To refuse the scheme for the following reason: 
 
(01) The site is located outside the village of Llanfaelog and its development would be contrary to 
Policy 50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan and Policy HP4 of the Stopped Unitary Development Plan. The 
development of the site would lead to pressure for other development of the applicant’s land and 
nearby land which cumulatively would erode the rural character of the area. 
 
In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 
before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 
go to the heart of the permission/ development. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



11.1 Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                                   Remainder Applications   
   

Rhif y Cais:     36C338A     Application Number 
 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 
 

Mr Steven Owen 
 
Cais llawn i godi annedd ynghyd a chodi modurdy arwahan ar dir gyferbyn a / Full application 

for the erection of a dwelling and detached garage on land opposite  
   

Ysgol Henblas, Llangristiolus 
   
 

 
 
 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 11



 
Planning Committee: 27/07/2016 
 
Report of Head of Regulation and Economic  Development Service (SCR) 
 
 Recommendation:   
 
Permit 
 
 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  
 
The applicant works within the Planning Function of the County Council.  
 
The application has been scrutinised by the Monitoring Officer as required under paragraph 4.6.10.4 
of the Constitution. 
 
 1. Proposal and Site  
 
The site is situated within the settlement of Llangristiolus on a parcel of land directly opposite the local 
primary school and lies on land next to a detached two storey dwelling which is known as ‘Llain Alaw’. 
Residential properties are located to the north west of the application site. The surrounding properties 
are a mix of single and two storey units.   
 
Access to the site is afforded off the B4422 onto a Class III highway which serves as the main route 
through the settlement.   
 
The application is a full application for the erection of a two storey detached dwelling together with a 
detached double garage.   
 
 2. Key Issue(s)  
 
The applications main issues are whether the proposal complies with current policies and whether the 
proposal will affect the amenities of the surrounding properties. 
 
 3. Main Policies  
 
Ynys Môn Local Plan 
Policy 1 – General Policy 
Policy 42 – Design 
Policy 48 – Housing Development Criteria 
Policy 50 – Listed Settlement 
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 
Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 
Policy D29 – Design 
 
Stopped Unitary Development Plan 
Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance  
Policy GP2 – Design 
Policy HP4 – Villages 
 
Planning Policy Wales, 2016, 8th Edition 

Page 66



 
Supplementary Planning Guidance – Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment 
 
Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 
 
 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  
 
Community Council – No response to date 
 
Local Member, Cllr V Hughes – No response to date 
 
Local Member, Cllr H E Jones – No response to date  
 
Highways Authority – Recommended conditional approval 
 
Drainage Section – Drainage details acceptable 
 
Welsh Water – Recommend conditional approval 
 
Response from members of the public  
 
The proposal was advertised through the posting of a notice on site together with the distribution of 
personal letters of notification to the occupiers of neighbouring properties.  Following the receipt of an 
amended plan the publicity process was repeated.  The latest date for the receipt of representations 
was the 2nd August, 2016 and at the time of writing this report two letters of objection and five letters 
of support had been received at the department.  The mains issues raised opposing the application 
can be summarised as follows: 
 
i) Comments were raised in regards to visibility splay and how they are formed. 
 
ii) Bottom left hand corner of the plot floods after rain  
 
iii) No need for a dwelling of this scale in the village as the neighbouring property was for sale for a 
considerable time.  Number of properties for sale in the village 
 
iv) Dwellings of this scale are out of character with the locality 
 
v) Affordable housing for local people is required in villages such as Llangristiolus 
 
vi) Loss of views 
 
vii) Two single storey properties would be more suitable on the site 
 
viii) The approval of this permission will result in further similar scale developments in the locality  
 
In response to these comments I would state; 
 
i) The means of access to the site has been constructed and the access was considered and 
approved under planning permissions 36C283A and 36C283B.  The Highway Authority have been 
consulted and have raised no objection to the proposal provided that standard conditions are imposed 
on the permission.   
 

Page 67



ii)  Drainage issues were also raised by members of the public during the course of determining the 
outline permission on the site.  However details submitted by the applicant as part of the outline 
application and as part of the current application confirm that the ground conditions are acceptable for 
the proposed drainage scheme.   A letter of support from the person responsible for the upkeep and 
maintenance of the land states that there are no surface water problems on the site. 
 
iii) We are currently dealing with an application for a two storey detached dwelling and there is ample 
space to accommodate the dwelling, garage, parking and turning area without resulting in the over-
development of the site.  The proposal is of a slightly lesser scale than that that was approved under 
the outline permission 36C338. 
 
iv) There is no distinct pattern of development in the village and there is a mixture of single / two 
storey units of traditional and modern design.  The design of the proposed dwelling is considered 
acceptable in this location. 
 
v) As the application is for one single dwelling within the settlement of Llangristiolus it does not trigger 
the need for affordable housing. 
 
vi) There is a distance of between 18 and 34 metres between the proposed dwelling and neighbouring 
properties and due to these distances it is not considered that the erection of a dwelling in this 
location will harm the amenities currently enjoyed by the occupants of the surrounding properties to 
such a degree as to warrant the refusal of the application. 
 
vii) The scheme before us is for one number detached two storey dwelling and the proposal in terms 
of its scale, design and siting is considered acceptable and complies with current policies. 
 
viii) Each application is considered on its own merits and any future application will be considered in 
accordance with policies and guidance in force at that time. 
 
The reasons stated for supporting the application were: 
 
i) Expansion and development of the area 
 
ii) Development for local people to settle in their desired environment 
 
iii) As the person responsible for the upkeep and maintenance of the application site confirms that 
there is no problem in regards to surface water on the site.  During the Eisteddfod Mon ceremony the 
site was used as a car park for around 70 vehicles and a bus with no trouble despite the bad weather 
prior and during the day of the ceremony 
 
iv) Construction of the dwelling will be undertaken by local people 
 
 5. Relevant Planning History  
 
36C338 – Outline application for the erection of a dwelling with all matters reserved on land opposite 
to Ysgol Henblas, Llangristiolus – Approved 17/02/2016 
 
Site history of adjoining land 
 
36C283 - Outline application for the erection of a dwelling together with demolition of the existing 
building on part of O.S enclosure number 9665 adjacent to Ael y Bryn, Llangristiolus – Approved 
25/11/08 

Page 68



 
36C283A – Full application for the erection of a dwelling, construction of a vehicular access together 
with the demolition of the ‘nissen’ hut on part of OS enclosure 9665 adjacent to Ael y Bryn, 
Llangristiolus – Approved 15/05/2009 
 
36C283B – Alterations to the access previously approved under planning permission no. 36C283A 
adjacent to Ael y Bryn, Llangristiolus – Approved 04/08/2010 
 
 6. Main Planning Considerations  
 
Policy - Llangristiolus is defined as a Listed Settlement under policy 50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan 
and as a village under Policy HP4 of the stopped UDP.   
 
Single plot applications within or on the edge of a settlement are considered acceptable under Policy 
50 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan. The erection of a dwelling on this site is considered acceptable as the 
site lies close to the adjoining properties.   
 
Policy HP4 of the stopped Unitary Development Plan states that residential development within the 
village boundary will be permitted subject to the listed criteria.  The application site lies outside the 
development boundary of Llangristiolus as defined under Policy HP4 of the stopped Unitary 
Development Plan.   
 
Although the site lies outside the development boundary of the village as defined under Policy HP4 of 
the stopped Unitary Development Plan the proposal is for a single dwelling only and therefore greater 
weight is placed on Policy 50 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan. The proposal is considered as an 
acceptable ‘infill’ development.    
 
The principle of development has been established with the granting of the outline permission in 
February 2016.  The current application is a full application as the proposal includes a detached 
double garage which did not form part of the outline proposal.  This has resulted in the application site 
being slightly increased. 
 
Affect on neighbouring properties – There is ample space within the site to accommodate the 
proposal without resulting in the over-development of the site.   
 
There is a distance of 34 metres between the rear of the proposed dwelling and the rear of the 
dwelling known as Caeau Bychain. 
 
There is a distance of 29 and 30 metres between the front of the proposed dwelling and the side and 
rear of the existing dwelling known as Llain Alaw. 
 
There is a distance of 18 metres between the secondary window which lies within the living area of 
the large open kitchen/dining and living room of the proposed dwelling and the rear of the dwelling 
known as Rhoslan.  The existing garage which is located at the rear of Rhoslan restricts the line of 
view from this window.  There is a distance of 20 metres between the secondary window within the 
kitchen area and this is screened from Rhoslan by the existing hedge. 
 
Due to the distances between the existing properties and proposed dwelling the proposal will not have 
a detrimental impact on the amenities currently enjoyed by the occupants of the neighbouring 
properties to such a degree as to warrant the refusal of the application. 
 
 7. Conclusion  

Page 69



 
The proposal complies with current policies and will not have a detrimental impact on the amenities of 
the adjoining properties. 
 
 8. Recommendation 
 
To permit the development subject to conditions. 
 
(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 
expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
(02) No surface water and / or land drainage shall be allowed to connect either directly or 
indirectly to the public sewerage network.   
 
Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and 
safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the environment. 
 
(03) The car parking accommodation shall be completed in full accordance with the details as 
submitted before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter retained solely for 
those purposes. 
 
Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority.  
 
(04) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 
the plan(s) and document(s) submitted below: 
 

Drawing / Document number Date Received Plan Description 

2291:16:2A 30/06/2016 Existing site plan 

2291:16:1 11/07/2016 Location plan 

2291:16:3B 30/06/2016 Proposed site plan 

Percolation Tests 01/07/2016 Results of Percolation Test 

2291:16:4 03/06/2016 Proposed Garage floor plans and elevations

2291:16:4 03/06/2016 Proposed Floor Plans 

2291:16:5 03/06/2016 Proposed Elevations  

 
under planning application reference 36C338A. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 
 
In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 
before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 
go to the heart of the permission/ development. 
 

Page 70



12.1  Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                     Remainder Applications 
   

Rhif y Cais:     10C130     Application Number 
 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 
 

Bodorgan Estate 
 
Cais llawn i leoli peiriant talu am barcio yn / Full application for the siting of a parking meter at 
   

Maes Parcio Porth Trecastell/Cable Bay Car Park, Aberffraw 
   
 

 
 
 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 12



 
Planning Committee: 27/07/2016 
 
Report of Head of Regulation and Economic Development Service (AL) 
 
 Recommendation: 
 
Permit. 
 
 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  
 
Called in by Local Member due to strong feeling within the community. 
 
 1. Proposal and Site  
 
The application lies at Porth Trecastell car park, near Aberffraw. 
 
The proposal entails the installation of a parking meter. 
 
 2. Key Issue(s)  
 
The key issue is whether the proposed scheme is acceptable. 
 
 3. Main Policies  
 
Ynys Môn Local Plan 
Policy 1 – General Policy 
Policy 30 - Landscape 
Policy 36 – Coastal Development 
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 
Policy D1 - Environment 
Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 
 
Stopped Unitary Development Plan 
Policy EN 1 – Landscape Character 
Policy GP1 – General Control Guidance 
 
Planning Policy Wales (8th Edition), January 2016 
 
Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 
 
 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  
 
Councillor Ann Griffith – Called in to committee due to strong feeling within the community. 
 
Councillor Peter Rogers -  No response received at the time of writing this report 
 
Councillor Gwilym O Jones – No response received at the time of writing this report 
 
Councillor Richard Dew - No response received at the time of writing this report 
 

Page 72



Community Council – Response received with no concerns with the placement and location of a 
parking meter, but expressed their concerns regarding potential road safety issues. 
 
Highways and Transportation – Their intention is to prevent parking on the A4080 for safety 
reasons as a result of the proposal. 
 
Public Consultation – The application was afforded two means of publicity. These were by the 
placing of a notice near the site and serving of personal notifications on the owners of neighbouring 
properties. The latest date for the receipt of representations was the 06/07/2016. At the time of writing 
this report, no letters of representations had been received at this department 
 
 5. Relevant Planning History  
 
No site history. 
 
 6. Main Planning Considerations  
 
The proposed entails the placement of a parking meter at Porth Trecastell Car Park near Aberffraw. 
The site is located within the Anglesey Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), which was 
designated in 1966 in order to protect the aesthetic appeal, and variety of the island’s coastal 
landscape and habitats from inappropriate development. 
 
It is considered that the placement of a parking meter would have a neutral effect on the surrounding 
landscape as it is sufficiently screened by surrounding dunes and vegetation. As the site is located 
within an existing car park, it is not considered that the proposed scheme will impact the surrounding 
amenities or any neighbouring properties to a degree that it should warrant a refusal. Concerns are 
raised that to avoid parking charges, visitors to the area may park on the side of the road and thus 
create disruption and/or obstruction to other road users. The Highway Authority raises no objection to 
the application but has indicated that it will seek to prevent parking on the A4080 using its power 
under the Highway Act. 
 
 7. Conclusion  
 
The proposed development is considered acceptable to the Local Planning Authority. Consequently, it 
is my opinion that the proposal should be permitted subject to conditions. 
  
8. Recommendation  
 
To permit the development subject to conditions. 
 
(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 
expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
(02) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 
the plan(s) submitted below under planning application reference 10C130. 
 

Drawing Number Date Received Plan Description 
A3500LB 10/06/16 Proposed Block Plan 
Elevations 10/06/16 Proposed Elevations 

 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

Page 73



 
In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend any condition(s) before the 
issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or go to the 
heart of the permission/ development. 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 74



12.2  Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                     Remainder Applications 
   

Rhif y Cais:     10C131     Application Number 
 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 
 

Bodorgan Estate  
 

Cais llawn i godi mesurydd parcio yn / Full application for the erection of a parking meter at  
   

Maes Parcio Broad Beach Car Park, Rhosneigr 
   
 

 
 
 
 

Page 75



 
Planning Committee: 27/07/2016 
 
 Report of Head of Regulation and Economic Development Service (AL) 
 
 Recommendation: 
 
Permit. 
 
 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  
 
Called in by Local Member due to strong feeling in the community. 
 
 1. Proposal and Site  
 
The application lies at Broad Beach car park, Porth Nobla near Aberffraw. 
 
The proposal entails the installation of a parking meter. 
 
 2. Key Issue(s)  
 
The key issue is whether the proposed scheme is acceptable. 
 
 3. Main Policies  
 
Ynys Môn Local Plan 
Policy 1 – General Policy 
Policy 30 - Landscape 
Policy 36 – Coastal Development 
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 
Policy D1 - Environment 
Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 
 
Stopped Unitary Development Plan 
Policy EN 1 – Landscape Character 
Policy GP1 – General Control Guidance 
 
Planning Policy Wales (8th Edition), January 2016 
 
Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 
 
 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  
 
Councillor Ann Griffith – Called in to committee due to strong feeling in the community. 
 
Councillor Peter Rogers -  No response received at the time of writing this report 
 
Councillor Gwilym O Jones – No response received at the time of writing this report 
 
Councillor Richard Dew - No response received at the time of writing this report 
 

Page 76



Community Council – Response received with no concerns with the placement and location of a 
parking meter, but expressed their concerns regarding potential road safety issues. 
 
Highways and Transportation – Their intention is to prevent parking on the A4080 for safety 
reasons as a result of the proposal. 
 
Public Consultation – The application was afforded two means of publicity. These were by the 
placing of a notice near the site and serving of personal notifications on the owners of neighbouring 
properties. The latest date for the receipt of representations was the 06/07/2016. At the time of writing 
this report, one letter of representations had been received. 
 
Their concerns were for road safety due to the possibility of vehicles parking on the main road to 
avoid parking charges. 
 
 5. Relevant Planning History  
 
No site history. 
 
 6. Main Planning Considerations  
 
The proposal entails the placement of a parking meter at Broad Beach Car Park near Aberffraw. The 
site is located within the Anglesey Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), which was 
designated in 1966 in order to protect the aesthetic appeal, and variety of the island’s coastal 
landscape and habitats from inappropriate development. 
 
It is considered that the placement of a parking meter would have a neutral effect on the surrounding 
landscape as it is sufficiently screened by surrounding dunes and vegetation. As the site is located 
within an existing car park, it is not considered that the proposed scheme will impact the surrounding 
amenities or any neighbouring properties to a degree that it should warrant a refusal. Concerns are 
raised that to avoid parking charges, visitors to the area may park on the side of the road and thus 
create disruption and/or obstruction to other road users. The Highway Authority raises no objection to 
the application but has indicated that it will seek to prevent parking on the A4080 using its power 
under the Highway Act. 
 
 7. Conclusion  
 
The proposed development is considered acceptable to the Local Planning Authority. Consequently, it 
is my opinion that the proposal should be permitted subject to conditions. 
  
8. Recommendation  
 
To permit the development subject to conditions. 
 
(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 
expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
(02) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 
the plan(s) submitted below under planning application reference 10C131. 
 

Drawing Number Date Received Plan Description 

Page 77



A3500LB 10/06/16 proposed Block Plan 
Elevations 10/06/16 Proposed Elevations 

 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 
 
In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend any condition(s) before the 
issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or go to the 
heart of the permission/ development. 
 
 
 

Page 78



12.3  Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                     Remainder Applications 
   

Rhif y Cais:     18C224A     Application Number 
 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 
 

Mr Matthew Venables 
 

Cais llawn ar gyfer newid defnydd adeiladau allanol i dau annedd ynghyd a gosod paced trin 
carthffosiaeth yn / Full application for conversion of outbuildings into two dwellings together 

with the installation of a package treatment plant at  
   

Fron Hendre, Llanfairynghornwy 
   
 

 
 
 

Page 79



 
Planning Committee: 27/07/2016 
 
 Report of Head of Planning Service (NJ) 
 
 Recommendation:   
 
Permit. 
 
 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  
 
The application involves Council owned land at the access to the site. 
 
 1. Proposal and Site  
 
The site is located in the designated AONB and comprises a single and two-storey stone agricultural 
building range adjoining an existing dwelling. The site is set in a large yard and originally formed part 
of the larger Caerau holding sold recently by the Council.  The Council retains part of the land over 
which access to the development is taken.     
 
 2. Key Issue(s)  
 
Principle of the development and its impacts on residential and local amenities including impacts on 
the AONB. 
 
 3. Main Policies  
 
Ynys Môn Local Plan  
Policy 1: General Policy  
Policy 30: Landscape 
Policy 35: Nature Conservation 
Policy 41: Conservation of Buildings 
Policy 55: Conversions 
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 
Policy  D1: AONB 
Policy D4 : Location Siting and Design 
Policy D9 : Environmentally Sensitive Areas 
Policy D10 : Flora and Fauna 
Policy D21 : Listed Buildings 
Policy D22 : Listed Buildings 
Policy D27 : Listed Building Conversion 
 
Ynys Môn Stopped Unitary Development Plan 
Policy GP1: Development Control Guidance 
Policy GP2: Design 
Policy EN1: Landscape Character 
Policy EN2: AONB 
Policy EN4: Biodiversity 
Policy EN13: Conservation of Buildings 
Policy HP 8: Rural Conversions 
Policy SG5: Private Sewage Treatment Facilities, Policy SG6: Surface Water Run-Off 

Page 80



 
SPG - Design in the Urban and Rural Built Environment 
 
Planning Policy Wales – Edition 8 
 
TAN 5 – Nature Conservation and Planning 
TAN 6 – Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities 
TAN 12 – Design  
TAN 18 – Transport  
TAN 23 – Economic Development 
 
Circular 10/99: Planning requirements in respect of the use of non-mains sewerage incorporating 
septic tanks in new development. 
 
Circular 61/96: Planning and the Historic Environment: Historic Buildings and Conservation Areas 
 
 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  
 
Community Council – No response at the time of writing 
 
Cllr Ll M Huws – No response at the time of writing 
 
Cllr J Griffith – No response at the time of writing 
 
Cllr K Hughes – No response at the time of writing 
 
Highways – 2.0m x 43m visibility splay is required at the access together with a passing bay.  Details 
requested to be included on the plan.  Plan received and comments were awaited at the time of 
writing. 
 
Natural Resources Wales – mitigation and avoidance measures need to be implemented in full and 
licence will be required for the proposed works 
 
Drainage – details are satisfactory in principle 
 
Built Environment and Landscape Section – the adjacent site at Caerau is a grade II* listed 
building, within the AONB and with public rights of way lying directly north and west of the site. 
Supportive of the conversion scheme in principle but concerned with some of the detail leading to loss 
of architectural features.  Amended drawings have been received in response to these comments and 
are confirmed as being acceptable. 
 
Ecological and Environmental Advisor – recommendations in protected species report should be 
followed. 
 
Welsh Water - comments 
 
Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service – condition requiring photographic record of the 
building suggested 
 
The application was publicised by site notice, neighbour notification and press advert.  As a result 1 
letter of objection has been received raising concerns regarding the use of modern materials, the 
impact on nearby listed buildings and the character of the buildings subject to the application. 

Page 81



Concern is expressed at the suitability of the access to the site and discrepancy on the drawings in 
relation to land ownership.  
 
In response to the objections raised, the drawings have been amended in response to comments 
received from the Built Environment and Landscape Section and are considered acceptable in terms 
of design and impact on the buildings themselves and the setting of nearby listed buildings. The 
Highway Authority has requested details of required visibility splays, which have been included on the 
drawings, and a passing bay on the highway to assist with the free flow of traffic. No objection is 
raised to the scheme in principle and it is noted that the objector has recently obtained planning 
permission for conversions on the adjoining site. The agent has confirmed land ownership as shown 
on the submitted drawings. 
 
 5. Relevant Planning History  
 
18C224: Full application for a proposed farm track on land adjacent to Hendre Fawr, 
Llanfairynghornwy – approved 14/05/2016 
 
18C224B/SCR: Screening opinion for the conversion of the existing outbuildings into two dwellings 
together with the installation of a sewage treatment plant at Fron Hendre, Llanfairynghornwy – EIA not 
required 06/06/2016 
 
 6. Main Planning Considerations  
 
Principle of the Development – Policies contained in the development plan and in the stopped UDP 
support conversion schemes for rural buildings subject to criteria.  The proposal seeks the conversion 
to an extensive range of outbuildings in order to create 2 residential units.  The application is 
supported by a report on the structural integrity of the building to support the works. Some 
amendments have been secured to the scheme as submitted in order to ensure that the character 
and appearance of the buildings are retained as part of the scheme.  The proposal does introduce 
contemporary elements to the proposal but on balance creates a sympathetic conversion. 
 
AONB - The application site is located within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). It is a 
statutory designation that recognises its importance in landscape quality and nature conservation 
terms.  The primary objective for an AONB designation is the conservation and enhancement of its 
natural beauty. Local authorities have a statutory duty to have regard to AONB purposes and 
development control decisions affecting AONBs should in the first instance favour conservation of 
natural beauty.  PPW advice is that  
 
“Development plan policies and development control decisions affecting AONBs should favour 
conservation of natural beauty, although it will also be appropriate to have regard to the economic and 
social well-being of the areas.”  
 
The scheme in design terms reflects existing built development. The site is an enclosed farmyard and 
its redevelopment of it will not have significant landscape impacts. The site is traversed by public 
footpaths but impacts will be acceptable.  From a wider view, the site is enclosed in a band of trees 
and is not readily visible in the wider landscape. . The proposal is in a rural area but set between 
existing built development at the end of an access track which will serve the development. PPW 
advises that  
 
“Statutory designation does not necessarily prohibit development, but proposals for development 
must be carefully assessed for their effect on those natural heritage interests which the designation is 
intended to protect” 

Page 82



 
And further that 
 
“The effect of a development proposal on the wildlife or landscape of any area can be a material 
consideration. In such instances and in the interests of achieving sustainable development it is 
important to balance conservation objectives with the wider economic needs of local businesses and 
communities.” 
 
Traffic Impacts - Concerns have been expressed at the highway safety impacts of the proposal at 
the entrance to the track and about through traffic at an adjoining site.  Through traffic on a private 
track is a civil matter.  The strip of land at the termination of the private access where it meets the 
public highway is owned by the Council. The Highway Authority has requested 2.0m by 43m visibility 
splays and these have been included on the submitted drawings. A request for a single passing bay 
to assist with the flow of traffic on the highway is to be conditioned as part of the permission. 
 
Ecology - The application is supported by appropriate reports and surveys.  Natural Resources 
Wales confirms that a licence is required for proposed works and that the mitigation measures 
outlined should be strictly followed in order to safeguard protected species, principally bats, which are 
present at the site.  
 
Residential and Amenity Impacts -  The scheme adjoins an existing dwelling and land in separate 
ownership which includes buildings which have recently been consented for conversion. There is 
sufficient distance between the scheme and adjoining development to ensure an adequate level of 
privacy and amenity.  The dwelling which adjoins the buildings is within the applicant’s ownership. A 
corridor window on the ground floor of one of the units overlooks the rear yard area of this dwelling, 
as does a proposed fire escape door, and a condition is proposed that all glazing be obscure glazed.  
 
 7. Conclusion  
 
The statutory consultees raise no concerns.  Planning policy allows the conversion of existing rural 
buildings to residential use.  It is not considered that the ecological impacts of the scheme are such 
that they cannot be mitigated.  It is not considered that the scheme would impact the AONB to such 
an extent as to warrant refusal. 
 
 8. Recommendation 
 
To permit the development subject to the following conditions: 
 
(01) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of (five) years 
from the date of this permission.  
 
Reason: To comply with the requirement of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
 
(02) The development shall take place in accordance with the recommendations contained 
within Cambrian Ecology Ltd Fron Hendre Building Conversion Bat and Protected Species 
Survey 13th August 2015 submitted under planning reference number 18C224A. No 
development shall commence until those recommendations are included in a Method 
Statement to be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The 
development shall thereafter proceed in accordance with the method statement as approved. 
 
Reason: To safeguard any protected species which may be present on the site. 
 

Page 83



(03) Notwithstanding condition (02) above, no development shall take place until the developer 
has issued to the local planning authority a copy of the licence issued to the developer by 
Natural Resources Wales pursuant to Regulation 53 of the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations (2010) authorising the works required under condition (02) above, or a 
copy of written confirmation by Natural Resources Wales that such licence is not required,  
and receipt has been confirmed in writng by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To safeguard any protected species which may be present on the site. 
 
(04) Prior to development (including any demolition, site clearance or stripping-out) taking 
place, a full photographic record of the building must be undertaken.  The record must be 
approved by the Local Planning Authority before being deposited with the regional Historic 
Environment Record. 
 
Reason: To ensure that an adequate record is made of all structures affected by the proposals and 
that the record is held within the public domain for future reference and research. 
  
(05) The acess shall be laid out with 2.0m by 43.0m visibility splays in accordance with 
Drawing SH1477 A.00.1 revision B Location Plan received on 7th July 2016 under planning 
reference 18C224A before the use hereby permitted is commenced and shall thereafter be 
maintained for the lifetime of the development. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
(06) No development shall commence until details of the location and specification of a 
passing bay on the highway serving the site, together with a timetable for its provision, have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development 
shall thereafter proceed in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the free flow of traffic on the highway. 
 
(07) The development shall proceed in accordance with the following documents and plans: 
 
Cambrian Ecology Ltd Fron Hendre Building Conversion Bat and Protected Species Survey 
13th August 2015; 
Salisbury Consultancy Structural Condition Report for Fron Hendre, Llanfairynghornwy 26 
September  2014 and 6th January 2015; 
Design and Access Statement Cadnant Planning April 2016; 
Drawing SH1466 A.00.1 revision B Location Plan; 
Drawing no. 1477 A.00.3 Proposed Site Plan; 
 
Drawing no. 1477 A.03.1 Revision A Proposed Floor Plans 
Drawing no. 1477 A.04.2 Revision A Proposed Elevations 
 
except that all glazing proposed in the east elevation of the building adjoining the dwelling at 
Fron Hendre shall be obscure glazed in perpetuity. 
 
Reason: To define the scope of this permission and in the interests of amenity. 
 
In addition the Head of Service be authorised to add to, remove or amend/vary any condition(s) 
before the issuing of the planning permission, providing that such changes do not affect the nature or 
go to the heart of the permission/ development. 

Page 84



 
12.4  Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                     Remainder Applications 
   

Rhif y Cais:     25C255A     Application Number 
 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 
 

Mrs Medwen Roberts 
 

Cais amlinellol ar gyfer codi annedd gyda'r holl materion wedi'u gadw'n ôl ar dir yn / Outline 
application for the erection of a dwelling with all matters reserved on land at 

   
Tan Rallt, Carmel 

   
 

 
 
 
 

Page 85



 
Planning Committee: 27/07/2016 
 
Report of Head of Regulation and Economic  Development Service (MD) 
 
 Recommendation:  
 
Refuse. 
 
 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 
The application is being presented to the Planning Committee as it has been referred to committee by 
Local Member Ll M Huws. 
 
 1. Proposal and Site  
 
The proposal is for outline planning for the erection of a dwelling with full details of access reserved 
on land adjacent Llynnon (Llyn Mon on plan). 
 
 2. Key Issue(s)  
 
The key issue is whether the proposal complies with current policies and whether the proposal will 
affect amenity. 
 
3. Main Policies  
 
Ynys Môn Local Plan 
Policy 1 – General Policy 
Policy 42 – Design 
Policy 48 – Housing Development Criteria 
Policy 50 – Listed Settlement 
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 
Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design  
Policy D29 - Design 
 
Stopped Unitary Development Plan 
Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance 
Policy GP2 – Design 
Policy HP4 – Villages 
 
 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  
 
Community Council – Comments were received from the Community Council that the proposed 
dwelling is located adjacent to another property and is orientated different to other properties. 
 
Local Member Ll M Huws - Has requested the application be referred to committee for a site visit. 
 
Highways Authority – Conditional Approval 
 
Welsh Water – No objection 
 

Page 86



The proposal was advertised through the posting of a notice on site together with the distribution of 
personal letters of notification to the occupiers of neighbouring properties.   
 
Two letters have been received points raised include; 
 

 Remove land from an agricultural holding 
 Would create addition traffic in a rural area along a lane which is unsuitable 
 There are no shops/doctors nearby 
 The area of land should be for landscaping as per the planning permission for Llynnon 
 There is a covenant on this land which has yet to be satisfied 
 The site is outside Policy 50 and would create ribbon development 

 
 5. Relevant Planning History  
 
25C255: Outline application for a dwelling withdrawn 
 
 6. Main Planning Considerations  
 
Whilst the site is adjacent to an existing dwelling it 
 forms part of an agricultural field and would extend into the open rural landscape  harming  the 
character of the locality. 
 
7. Recommendation 
 
Refuse 
 
(01) The proposed dwelling would be located in a position which would be poorly related to the 
existing form of development intruding into a rural landscape and detrimental to the amenities 
thereof. 
 
 8. Other Relevant Policies  
 
Technical Advice Note 12: Design 
 
SPG – Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment 
 
Planning Policy Wales 8th Edition  
 
 

 
 

Page 87



12.5  Gweddill y Ceisiadau                                     Remainder Applications 
   

Rhif y Cais:     19LPA1028/CC     Application Number 
 

Ymgeisydd    Applicant 
 

Mr Nathan Blanchard 
 
Cais llawn ar gyfer gosod plac allanol yn / Full application for the siting of an external plaque 

at  
   

5/5a Stanley Crescent, Caergybi/Holyhead 
   
 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 88



Planning Committee: 27/07/2016 
 
Report of Head of Regulation and Economic  Development Service (OWH) 
 
 Recommendation: 
 
Permit 
 
 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  
 
The application is submitted by the Council 
 
 1. Proposal and Site  
 
The application is situated along Stanley Crescent in Holyhead and is located within the designated 
Holyhead Conservation Area. The application site is currently occupied as a café. 
 
The proposal entails the erection of a plaque.  
 
 2. Key Issue(s)  
 
The key issue is whether the proposed scheme is acceptable.  
 
 3. Main Policies  
 
Ynys Mon Local Plan 
Policy 1 – General Policy 
Policy 40 – Conservation of Buildings 
Policy 42 – Design 
 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 
Policy D1 – Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 
Policy D25 – Alterations and Additions to Existing Buildings in Conservation Areas. 
Policy D29 - Design 
 
Stopped Unitary Development Plan 
Policy GP1 – General Control Guidance 
Policy GP2 – Design 
Policy EN13 – Conservation of Buildings 
 
Planning Policy Wales (8th Edition), January 2016 
 
Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 
 
 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  
 
Councillor Raymond Jones – No response received at the time of writing this report 
 
Councillor Robert Llewelyn Jones -  No response received at the time of writing this report 
 
Councillor Arwel Roberts – No response received at the time of writing this report 

Page 89



 
Town Council – No response received at the time of writing this report 
 
Public Consultation – The application was afforded three means of publicity. These were by the 
placing of a notice near the site, placing an advert in the local newspaper and serving of personal 
notifications on the owners of neighbouring properties. The latest date for the receipt of 
representations was the 20/07/2016 and 03/08/2016. At the time of writing this report, the department 
has not received and observation.  
 
 5. Relevant Planning History  

 
19C487/AD – Erection of an internally illuminated projecting shop sign at 5 Stanley Crescent, 
Holyhead Approved 14/10/1991 
 
19C487A – Change of use of ground floor of vacant shop to a fish and chip shop at 5 Stanley 
Crescent, Holyhead Approved 07/01/1992 
 
19C487B – Change of use of one room on first floor to café together with the formation of an eating 
area on the ground floor at 5 Stanley Crescent, Holyhead Approved 08/04/1992 
 
19C487C – Full application for the refurbishment  of the existing chip shop and flats together with the 
erection of a new extension to the rear of 5 Stanley Crescent, Holyhead Approved 26/04/2013 
 
19C487D/FR - Full application for the installation of a new shop front at of 5 Stanley Crescent, 
Holyhead Approved 21/06/2013 
 
 6. Main Planning Considerations  
 
Effect of the proposal on the character of the designated Conservation Area. 
 
The proposal entails the erection of a plaque to acknowledge contributions by grant funding partner’s 
support of the Holyhead Townscape Heritage Initiative towards the recent refurbishment project at 
5/5a Stanley Crescent, Holyhead.  
 
The plaque is made from 1.6mm VE grade steel coated in Vitreous Enamel and is 175mm wide by 
222mm high, with a 15mm return to the edges to hide the fixing studs on the rear. The fixings will be 
stainless dowels drilled into the substrate render with resin bounding used to affix them to both the 
building and rear studs. 
 
The proposed plaque is considered to be appropriate and fit for purpose in meeting the requirements 
of planning policies. Therefore, it is not considered that the proposal will unduly affect the character of 
the designated Conservation Area.  
 
 7. Conclusion  
 
The proposed development is considered acceptable to the Local Planning Authority, subject to 
conditions. 
  
 8. Recommendation  
 
Permit subject to no adverse representations being received at the end of the notification period 
 
(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the 

Page 90



expiration of five years beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
(02) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with 
the plan(s) submitted below: 
 

Drawing number Date Received Plan Description 
- 17/06/2016 Design and Access Statement 
D372.04 17/06/2016 Location Plan 

 
D372.07 17/06/2016 Proposed Elevation Plan 

 
- 17/06/2016 Plauqe details 

under planning application reference 19LPA1028/CC 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 
 
(03) Any further alterations which may be required to be carried out the building and which 
would likely to affect its external appearance consequent to the implementation of this 
permission shall form the subject of an application which shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any work is commenced on such alterations.  
 
Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities of the Conservation Area.  
 

 
 
 
 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes 6th July, 2016 Meeting
	4 Site Visits 20th July, 2016
	6 Applications that will be Deferred
	7 Applications Arising
	11 Development Proposals Submitted by Councillors and Officers
	12 Remainder of Applications

